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Independent Auditors’ Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
to the Shareholders of Samba Financial Group (A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

Report on the audit of the consolidated financial statements

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Samba Financial Group (the “Bank™)
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group™), which comprise the statements of
consolidated financial position as at December 31, 2017, and the statement of consolidated
incoime, statement of consolidated comprehensive income, statement of consolidated changes
in equity and statement of consolidated cash flows for the year then ended, and the summary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes from 1 to 39.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all
material respects, the consolidated financial position of the Group as at December 31, 2017,
and its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) as modified
by Saudi Arabian Monetary Authority (“SAMA™) for the accounting of zakat and income tax.

Basis for Opinion

We-conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing as endorsed in
the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described
in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section
of our report, We are independent of the Group in accordance with the professional code of
conduct and ethics, as endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, that are relevant to our audit
of the consolidated financial statements, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidenee we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most
significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial staterents as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters.

For each matter below, a description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that
context:
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Independent Auditors’ Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
to the Shareholders of Samba Financial Group (A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

Report on the audit of the consolidated financial statements (continued)

Key Audit Matters (continued)

Key audit matter

How our aundit addressed the key andit
matter

Zakat

The Group files its zakat return with the General
Authority of Zakat and Tax (“GAZT”) on an annual
basis, The GAZT has issued assessment orders for
the years from 2004 up to 2009, which resuited in
significant additional exposure amounting to Saudi
Riyals 1,309 million. The additional assessments
mainly relate to zakat resulting from certain long-
term investments being considered as non-deductible
by the GAZT for the purpose of computation of Zakat
base and the addition of long-term financing to the
Zukat base which consequently increased the zakat
exposure,

The interpretations of the GAZT are being
challenged by the Group and the appeal proceedings
are underway before the Higher Appeals Committee.

Assesstents for the years 2010 onwards are yet to be
raised by the GAZT. However, in line with the
assessments finalized by the GAZT for the years
2004 to 2009 which are currently being appealed, if
long-term investments aré disallowed and long=term
financing is added to the Zakat base this would result
in significant additionat zakat exposure, The amount
of the potential additional zakat exposure related to
the years 2010 onwards are not disclosed in the
consolidated financial statements as management
believes that this can be prejudicial to the Bank and
might affect the Bank’s position in this matter.

The management makes judgments about the
incidence and quantum of zakat liabilities (which are
subject to the future outcome of assessments by the
GAZT) and based on such assessment, management
is confident of a favourable outcome of the appeal
process.

We consider this as a key audit matter as it involves
significant management estimation and assessment
and the additional demand by the GAZT are material
to the consolidated financial statements.

Refer to note 2.26 of the consolidated financial
statements for the accounting policies relating {o

In order to assess the status and likely
outcone of the matter, we obtained the
correspondence between the Group,
GAZT and Group’s independent
external lax and zakat consultants to
determine the amount of additional
assessments made by the GAZT, We
further obtained the related appeal
docwments to confirm the fact that the
matter has beén contested at various
appellate forums and to assess the status
of the outcome of those appeals.

We held meetings with those charged
with governance and  éxecutive
management of the Group to obtain au
update on the Zakat matter and the
resnlts of their interactions with the
relevant appeal committees,

We also used our internal specialist to
assess the appropriateness of the
exposure disclosed for the years
assessed by the GAZT, and the
appropriateness  of  nanagement’s
judgements relating to the zakat matter
in light of the facts and circumstances of
the Group.

We also assessed the appropriateness of
disclosures included in the consolidated
financial statements of the Group.
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Independent Auditors’ Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
to the Shareholders of Samba Financial Group (A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

Report on the audit of the consolidated financial statements (continued)

Key Audit Matters (continued)

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit
matfer

Zakat and note 25 for the related disclosures for
Zakat

Impairment of available for sale investments

As at December 31, 2017, the Group had aggregate
available for sale investments of Saudi Riyals 24.39
billion. These investments comprise equities, sukuk
and other invesiments, which are subject to the risk
of impairment due to either adverse market situations
and / or liquidity constraints faced by the issuers,

For assessing the impairment of equity instruments,
management monitors volatility of share prices and
uses the criteria of significant or prolonged decline in
fair values below costs as the basis for determining
impairinent. A significant or prolonged decline in fair
value below cost represents an objective evidence of
impairment. The determination of what is significant
or prolonged requires judgment. In assessing whether
it is significant, the decline in the fair value is
evaluated against the original cost of the equity
instrument. In assessing whether it is prolonged, the
period in which the fair value of the equity instrument
has been below ils original cost is assessed and
evaluated.

Management considers sukuk and other debt
instruments to be impaired when there is evidence of
a deterioration in the financial health of the investee
or else due to industry, country or sector
performance, changes in technology and operational
and financing cash flows which may result in the
Bank not recovering substantially all of its principal
and interest payment.

We considered this as a key audit matter since the
assessment of impairment requires significant
judgment by manageinent and the potential impact of
impairment could be material to the consolidated
financial statements.

Refer to note 2.14 of the consolidated financial
statements for the accounting policy relating to the
impairment of available for sale investments, note
2.5(c) for the critical accounting estimates and

We assessed the design and implementation
and tested the operating effectiveness of the
key controls over management’s processes
for identifying significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of available for sale
equity investments.

For equity investments, on sample basis, we:

e Assessed the appropriateness of
management’s criteria for determining
the significant or prolonged decline in the
value of investments;

» Evaluated the basis for determining the
fair value of investments;

s Tested the valuations; and

» Considered price fluctuation / movement
during the holding period to determine if
the decline in the fair value of the
investment meets the significant or
prolonged criteria.

For sukuk and other debt instruinents, on a
sample  basis, we  assessed the
creditworthiness of counter pariies and
assessed likely timing of cash flows from the
instrument to evaluate any defaults based on
the contractual terms and conditions of the
issuance of these investments.
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Independent Auditors’ Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
to the Shareholders of Samha Financial Group (A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

Report on the audit of the consolidated financial statements (continued)

Key Audit Matters (continued)

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit
matter

judgments, and notes 28 and 30 for the disclosures of
credit and market risks, respectively.

Loan impairment

At December 31, 2017, gross loans and advances of
the Group were Saudi Riyals 119.66 billion against
which impairment provision of Saudi Riyals 1.97
billion was maintained. This includes impairment
against specific corporate loans and collective
impairment recorded on a portfolio basis.

We considered this as a key audit matter as the Group
makes complex and subjective judgments and makes
assumptions to determine the impairment and the
timing of recognition of such impairment.

In particular, the determination of impairment
against loans and advances includes:

o The identification of impairment events and
methods and judgments used to calculate
impairment against specific corporate loans
and advances;

o The use of assumptions underlying the
¢alculation of collective hmpairment for
portfolios of loans and advances, and the use
of models to make those calculations; and

o An assessment of the Group’s exposure to
certain industries aflected by short-term
economic conditions.

stateinents for the accounting policy, note 2.5(a)
which details the significant accounting estimates
and judgmenis relating to impairment against loans
and advances, note 2.14 which explains the
impairment assessment methodology used by the
Group and note 6 which details the disclosure of
impairment against loans and advances.

Refer to note 2.13 of the consolidated financial

We assessed the design and implementation,
and tested the operating effectiveness of the
key controls over management’s processes
for establishing and monitoring both specific
and ¢ollective impairment provisions.

These included controls over the
identification of impaired loans and advances
and the calculation.of impairment provisions.

We alse tested entity level controls over the
modelling process including model review
and monitoring, approval of assumptions by
senior management and the Group’s relevant
Committees, the data transfer froin source
systems to immpairment model and model
output to the general ledger.

We tested a sample of loans and advances to
form our own assessment as to whether
impairment events had occurred and to assess
whether impairment had been identified and
recorded in-a timely manner.

For loans and advances, which are
individually assessed for impairment, we
considered the assumptions underlying the
impairment identification including
forecasted future cash flows, discount rates
and estimated recovery, including recovery
from any underlying collateral, etc. For
individually assessed loans and advauces,
our sample also included exposures relating
to borrowers operating in industries

| adversely affected by the current economic

conditions.

For collective impairment, we also assessed
the appropriateness of the qualitative and
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Independent Auditors’ Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
to the Shareholders of Samba Financial Group (A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

Report on the audit of the consolidated financial statements {(continued)

Key Audit Matters (continued)

Key audit matier

How our audit addressed the key audit
matter

quantitative changes in the underlying loan
porifolio. We also tested, on a sample basis,
extraction of data used in the models
including grading of corporate loans,
movements between various grades of
corporate loans and analysis of loans into
delinquency bandings for the retail portfolio.

Valuation of derivatives

The Group has entered into varions derivatives
including commission rate swaps (“swaps™), forward
foreign exchange contracts (“forwards™), currency,
commission rate equity and commodity options
(*options™) and other derivative contracts. Swaps,
forwards, options and other derivative contracts
include over the counter (OTC) derivatives and
hence, the valnation of these contracts is subjective
as it takes into account a number of assumptions and
model calibrations.

The majority of these derivatives are held for trading.
However, the Group utilises certain derivatives for
hedge accounting purposes in the consolidated
financial statements for hedging cash flow or fair
value risks. An inappropriate valuation of derivatives
could have a material impact on the consolidated
financial statements and in case of hedge
ineffectiveness impact the hedge accounting as well.

We considered this as a key audit matter as there is
complexity and subjectivity involved in determining
the valuation in general and in certain cases dve to
use of complex modelling techniques and the
valuation inputs that are not market observable.

Refer to the significant accounting policies notes
2.5(b) for significant accounting estimates in
connection with fair value of unquoted financial
instruments, 2.7 to the consolidated financial
statements for accounting policy relating to
derivatives and hedge accounting and note 9 which
discloses the derivative positions as at the reporting
date.

We assessed the dcsign and implementation,
and tested the operating effectiveness of the
key controls over manageinent’s processes
for valuation of derivatives and hedge
accounting including the testing of relevant
automated controls covering the fair
valuation process of derivatives.

We selected a sainple of derivatives and:

» Tested the accuracy of the particulars of
derivatives by comparing the terms and
conditions with relevant agreements and
deal confirmations.

e  Checked the accuracy and
appropriateness of the key inputs to the
valuation model.

s Performed independent valuations of the
derivatives and compared the result with
management’s valuation.

s Checked hedge effectiveness performed
by the Group and the related hedge
accounting.

+ Considered the adequacy of the Group's
disclosures about the valuation basis and
inputs used in the fair value
measurement.
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Independent Auditors’ Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
to the Sharcholders of Samba Financial Group (A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

Report on the audit of the consolidated financial statements (continued)

Key Audit Matters (continued)

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit
matter

Valuation of available for sale investments

Available for sale investments comprise debt and
equity investments, These instruments are measured
at fair value with the corresponding fair value change
recognised in other comprehensive income. The fair
value of these financial instrwments is determined
through the application of valuation techniques
which often involve the exercise of judgment by
management and the use of assumptions and
estimates.

Estimation uncertainty exists for those instruments
which are not traded in an active market and where
the internal modelling techniques use:

= gignificant observable valuation inputs (i.e.
lével 2 instruments); and

" gignificant unobservable valuation inputs
(i.e. level 3 instruinents),

Estimation uncertainty is particularly high for leve! 3
instruments,

The valuation of the Group’s available for sale
investments categorised as level 2 and 3 was
considered a key audit matter given the degree of
complexity involved in valuing these financial
instruments and significance of the judgment and
estimates made by management.

Refer to notes 2.12(b) and 2.5(b) to the consolidated
financial statements which explains the Group’s
accounting policy for available for sale investments
and relatcd estimates and judgements of
management.

e We assessed the design and
implementation and tested the operating
effectiveness of key controls over
management’s processes for performing
valuation of investments classified as
available for sale, which are not traded
in an active market,

« We performed an assessment of the
methodology and the appropriateness of
inputs used to value available for sale
investments not traded in an active
market.

» We tested the valuation of a sample of
available for sale investments not traded
in an active market. As part of these
audit procedures, we assessed the key
inputs used in the valuation.
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Independent Auditors® Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
to the Shareholders of Samba Financial Group (A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

Report on the audit of the consolidated financial statements (continued)

Other Information included in the Bank’s 2017 Annual Report

The Board of Directors of the Bank (the Directors) are responsible for the other information.
The other information consists of the information included in the Bank’s 2017 annual report,
other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditors® report thereon. The annual
report is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditors’ report.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and
we do not and will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to
read the other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. '

When we read the other information, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement
therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance.

Responsibilities of the Directors and Those Charged with Governance for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The Directors are responsible for the preparation and fait piesentation of the consolidated
financial statements in accordance with the IFRSs as modified by SAMA for the accounting of
zakat and income tax, the applicable requirements of the Regulations for Companies, the
Banking Control Law in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and the Bank’s Articles of Association,
and for such internal control as the Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Directors are responsible for assessing
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.
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Independent Auditors’ Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
to the Shareholders of Samba Financial Group (A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

Report on the audit of the consolidated financial statements (continued)

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and
to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with International
Standards on Auditing as endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, will always detect a
material misstatement when il exists, Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expecied to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing as endorsed in the
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatemient of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The tisk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional

omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control,

= Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

+ Lvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Directors.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, il such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concermn.

¢ Evalnate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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Independent Auditors’ Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
to the Sharcholders of Samba Financial Group (A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

Report on the audit of the consolidated financial statements (continued)

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

»  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the
entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant andit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of miost significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditors® report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

Based on the information that has been made available to us, nothing has come to our attention
that causes us to believe that the Bank is not in compliance, in all material respects, with the
applicable requirements of the Regulations for Companies, the Banking Control Law in the
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and the Bank’s Articles of Association in so far as they affect the
preparation and presentation of the consolidaied financial statements.

Ernst & Young PricewaterhouseCoopers
P O Box 2732 P O Box 8282

Riyadh 11461 482

Kingdom of Saudi of Saudi Arabia

b pdy Gt et
%, PROSESSIOMAL LICENCE Wb, 43

Abdulaziz A. Al-Sowailim
Certified Public Accountant
License Number 277

sr ﬁed Public Accountant
Acense Number 369

L\ PRICEWATERHOUSECOOPERS
o CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT!
LICENSE NO. 28 ’

9 Jumnad Al Tham 1439H
(February 25, 2018)



Samba Financial Group

STATEMENTS OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL POSITION
As at December 31, 2017 and 2016

207 2016
{Restaled)
Notes SAR’000 SAR'000
ASSETS
Cash and balances with Central Banks 3 25,195,066 37,344,514
Due from banks and cther financial institutions 4 11,031,480 9,599,656
investments, net 5 63,912,410 51,382,810
Derivatives 9 6,514,708 4,442 059
Leans and advances, net 6,33 117,684,729 125,234,330
Property and equipment, net 7 2,638,884 2,510,180
Other assets 8 633,802 965,038
Total Assets 227,611,079 231,488,587
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
Due to banks and other financial institutions 10 6,551,464 10,880,778
Customer deposits 14,33 167,987,571 172,075,716
Derivatives 9 3,976,298 1,485,629
Other liabilities 12 4,413,594 4,501,696
Total Liabilities 182,928,927 188,943,819
EQUITY
Equity attributable to equity holders of the Bank
Shars capital 14 20,000,000 20,000,000
Statutory reserve 15 15,811,044 14,554,971
General reserve 15 130,000 130,000
Other reserves 98,514 {78,428}
Retained eamings 9,564,853 7,884,606
Proposed dividend 25 - 997,753
Treasury stocks {1,021,743) {1.,045,623)
Total equity atiribiiable to equity holders of the Bank 44,582,668 42,443,219
Nen-controlling interest 99,484 101,482
Total Equity 44,682,152 42,544,768
Total Liabilities and Equity 227,611,079 231,488,567

The accompanying notes 1 fo 39 form an inlegral part of these consolidated financial statements

Abdul Hateam Sheikh Fahd Al-Mufarrij
Chief Financlai Officer Director

Chief Executive Officer



Samba Financial Group

STATEMENTS OF CONSOLIDATED INCOME

For the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016

Special commission income
Special commission expense

Special commission income, net

Fees and commission income, nei
Exchange income, net

Income from investments held at FVIS, net
Trading income (loss), net

Gains on non-trading investments, net
Other operaling income,net

Total operating income

Salaries and employee related expenses
Rent and premises felated expenses
Dapreciation

Other general and administrative expenses
Provision for credit losses, net of recoveries
Total operating expenses

Net income for the years

Attributabie 1o;

Equity holders of the Bank

Non-controlling interest

Basic and diluted earnings per share for the year (SAR)

Abdul Haleem Sheikh

w017 2016
Notes SAR'000 SAR'0D0
18 6,927,740 6,691,752
18 1,195,515 1,309,468
5,732,225 5,382,284
19 1,422,735 1,584,807
298,702 563,920
160,073 49,396
20 94377 (14,538)
21 29,087 35,767
22 164,417 158,821
7,891,566 7,760,457
23 1,310,354 1,339,059
353,941 350,504
7 123,565 121,31
782,250 743,744
B 287,166 200,146
2,867,276 2,754,794
5,024,290 5,005,663
5,021,085 5,002,312
3,225 2,751
5,024,290 5,005,663
24 2.51 250
he-accompanying notes 1 to 39 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements .
( ; 2 Ler - T > -y G
/ Fahd Al-Mufari] fﬂé/ﬁgﬁf
Director Chief Executive Offlcer

Chlef Financial Officer

11



Samba Financial Group

STATEMENTS OF CONSOLIDATED COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016

Net income for the years

Other comprehensive income for the year ~ items that may be reclassified
subsequently to the statements of consolidated income:

- Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations
Available for sale financial assets:

- Change in fair values

- Transfers fo statements of consolidated income
Cash fiow hedges:

- Change in fair values

- Transfers to statements of consolidated income
Other comprehensive income (loss) for the years
Total comprehensive income for the years
Attributabie to:

Equity holders of the Bank

Non-controlling interest

Total

The accompanying notes 1 to 39 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements

12

2017 2016
SAR'000 SAR'000
5,024,290 5,005,663
(27,399) (11,135)
130,481 (109,273)
(29,037) (39,495)
153,826 (82,789)
(56,159) (51,761)
171,112 (294,453)
5,196,002 4,711,210
5,198,007 4,718,977
(2,005) (7,767)
5,196,002 4,711,210
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Samba Finanicial Group

STATEMENTS OF CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOWS
For the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016

2017 2016

Notes SAR'000 SAR'000
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income for the years 5,024,290 5,005,663
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash from operating activities:
Amortization of premium and accretion of discount on non-trading investments, net 30,036 (45,136)
Income from investments held at FVIS, et (150,073) {49,396)
Gain on non-trading investments, net 21 {29,037) {35,767)
Depreciation 7 123,565 121,344
Gain on disposal of property and equipment, net 22 (7.792) {73}
Provision for credit losses, net of recoveries 8 287,166 200,146
Net (increase) / decrease in operating assets:
Statutory deposits with Central Banks 318,040 266,597
Due from banks and other financial institutions maturing after ninety days (5,289,215) 2,016,017
Investments held for trading 674,255 728,276
Derivatives (2,072,649 {1,835,927)
Loans and advances 7,262,435 4,566,754
Other assets 331,236 {264,867)
Net increase / {decrease) in operating liabilitles:
Due to banks and other financial institutions (4,329.314) {8,316,452)
Customer deposits (4,088,145) 271,182
Derivatives 2,490,669 875,728
Other fabililies {559,954) 798,545
Net cash from operating activities 15,513 4,302,631
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from sale of and matured non-trading investments 6,794,354 80,447,570
Purchase of non-trading investments {19,737,691) {62,634,939)
Purchase of property and equipment, net of exchange adjustments (252,521) {370,028)
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment 8,044 5,792
Net cash (used in) / from investing activities (13,187,314) 17,448,395
EINANCING ACTIVITIES
Dividends paid (2,575,233) {2,263,938)
Traasury stocks, net 58,735 43,948
Net cash used in financing activities {2,515,498) (2,239,990)
(Decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents {15,688,798) 19,511,036
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 26 36,662,047 17,151,011
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 26 20,973,248 36,662,047
Special commission received during the year 6,793,429 6,661,570
Special commission paid during the year 1,526,608 834,029
Supplemental non-cash information;
Net changes in falr value and transfers to Statements of Consolidated Income 199,111 (263,318)

mﬁng notes 1 to 33 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
- =

Abdul Haleem Shei Fahd Al-Mufarri}
Chief Financial Officer Director
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Rania Nashar

Chief Executive Officer



Samba Financial Group

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016

1,

2,

General

Samba Financial Group (the Bank], a joint stock company incorporated in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, was formed pursuant to
Royal Decree Mo. M/3 dated 26 Rabie Al-Awal 1400H (February 12, 1980). The Bank commenced business on 29 Shaa'ban 1400H
(Juiy 12, 1980) when it took over the operations of Citibank in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. The Bank operates under commercial
registration no. 1010035319 dated 6 Safar 1401H (December 13, 1980) through its 73 branches {2016: 72 branches) in the Kingdom
of Saudi Arabia and three overseas branches (2016: three branches). The Bank including its overseas branches employed 3,360 full
time direct staff af the year-end (2016: 3,560). The Bank is listed on the Saudi Arabian stock exchange and its head office is located
at King Abdul Aziz Road, P.C. Box 833, Riyadh 11421, Kingdom of Saudi Arabia.

The objective of the Bank is to provide a full range of banking and related services. The Bank also provides Shariah approved Istamic
banking products to its customers.

The consolidated financial statements include financial statements of the Bank and its foflowing subsidiaries, hereinafter collectively
referred to as “the Group™

Samba Capital and Investment Management Company (Samba Capital)

In accordance with the securilies business regulations issued by the Capital Markel Authority {CMA), the Bank has established a
wholly owned subsidiary, Samba Capital and Investment Management Company under commercial registration number 1010237159
issued in Riyadh dated 6 Shaa'ban 1428H {August 19, 2007), to manage the Bank’s investment services and asset management
aclivities related to dealing, arranging, managing, advising and custody businesses. The company is licensed by the CMA and has
commenced its business effective January 19, 2008. Samba Capital was converted from a limited fiability company to a closed joint
stock company on 28 Rajab 1438H (April 25, 2017), which is the date of commercial registration of the closed joint stock company.

During the current year, Samba Capital has formed a wholly owned subsidiary “Samba Investment Real Estate Company” which is
incorporated in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia under commercial registration number 1010715022 issued in Riyadh dated 23 Shawaal
1438H (July 17, 2017). The company has been formed as a limited liability company (sole ownership) and is engaged in managing
real estate projects for on and on behalf of a mutual fund managed by Samba Capital.

Samba Bank Limited, Pakistan (SBL)

An 84.51% owned subsidiary incorporated as a banking company in Pakistan and engaged in commercial banking and related
services, and listed on Pakistan Stock Exchange.

Co-Invest Offshore Capital Limited {COCL)

A wholly owned company incorporated under the laws of Cayman Islands for the purpose of managing certain overseas investments
through an entity; Investment Capital (Cayman) Limited {ICCL} which is fully owned by COCL. ICCL has invested in approximately
41.2% of the share capital of Access Co-Invest Limited, also a Cayman Island limited liability company, which manages these
overseas investments,

Samba Real Estate Company

A wholly owned subsidiary incorporated in Saudi Arabia under commercial registration no. 1010234757 issued in Riyadh dated 9
Jumada I, 1428H (June 24, 2007). The company has been formed as a limited liability company with the approval of Saudi Arabian
Monetary Authority (SAMA) and is engaged in managing real estate projects on behalf of the Bank.

Samba Global Markets Limited

A wholly owned company incorporated as a fimited liability company under the laws of Cayman islands on February 1, 2016, with the
objective of managing certain treasury related transactions. The company started its commercial operations during the fourth quarter
of 2016.

Summary of significant accounting policies
The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
21 Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Intemational Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS) as modified by SAMA for the accounting of zakat and income tax (See note 2.2 below).The Group prepares its
consolidated financial statements also to comply with the Banking Control Law, the Regulations for Companies in the Kingdom
of Saudi Arabia and ifs Articles of Association,

2.2 Basis of preparation and presentation
The consclidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared:

- in accordance with ‘Intemational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as modified by SAMA for the accounting of zakat
and income tax’, which requires, adoption of all IFRSs as issued by the Intemational Accounting Standards Board (‘IASB")
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except for the appfication of Infernational Accounting Standard (IAS) 12 - “Income Taxes” and IFRIC 21 - “Levies” so far as
these relate to zakat and income tax. As per the SAMA Circular no. 381000074519 dated April 11, 2017 and subsequent
amendments through certain clarifications relating to the accounting for zakat and income tax (“SAMA Circular”), the Zakat
and Income tax are to be accrued on a quarterly basis through shareholders equity under retained eamings; and

- in compliance with the provisions of Banking Control Law, the Regulations for Companies in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia
and the Article of Association of the Bank.

Further, the above SAMA Circular has also repealed the existing Accounting Standards for Commercial Banks, as promulgated
by SAMA, and are no longer applicable from January 1, 2017. Refer note 2.26 for the accounting policy of zakat and income tax
and note 37 for the impact of change in the accounting policy resulting from the SAMA Circutar,

The consolidated financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention except for the measurement at fair
value of derivatives, available for sale and FVIS financial assets and liabilities. In addition, as explained fully in the related notes,
financial assets and liabilities that are hedged under a fair vaiue hedging refationship are adjusted to record changes in fair
value attributable to the risks that are being hedged.

Under article 37 of the Bank's Articles of Association, the Gregorian calendar is observed for reporting the consolidated finanial
statements.

These consolidated financial statements are expressed in Saudi Arabian Riyals {SAR) and are rounded off to the nearest
thousands.

Consolidation

These consolidated financial statements include the financial pesition and results of Samba Financial Group and its subsidiary
companies. The financial statements of subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as that of the Bank, using
consistent accounting policies except for Co-Invest Offshore Capital Limited (COCL) whose financial statements are made up fo
the previous quarter end for consolidation purposes to meet the group reporting timetable. However any matenal changes
during the interim period are adjusted for the purposes of consolidation. In addition, wherever necessary, adjustments have
been made fo the financial statements of the subsidiaries to align with the Bank's consolidated financial statements.

Significant intragroup balances and transactions are eliminated upon consolidation.

Subsidiaries are the entities that are controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has a right, to
variable retums from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over that entity.
Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is transfemred to the Group and cease to be consolidated from the
date on which the control is transferred from the Group. The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed-off during the vear are
included in the statement of consolidated income from the date of acquisition or up to the date of disposal, as appropriate.

Non-controlling interest represents the portion of net income or loss and net assets not owned, directly or indirectly, by the
Group in subsidiaries and are presented in the statements of consolidated income and within equity in the statements of
consolidated financial position separately from the equity holders of the Bank.

The purchase method of accounting is used to account for the acquisition of subsidiaries by the Bank. The cost of acquisition is
measured at the fair value of the consideration given at the date of exchange. The acquired identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities are measured at their fair value at the date of acquisition. The excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair
value of the Bank’s share of identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as intangible asset — goodwil.

In addition to the subsidiaries stated above under note 1, the Bank is also party to certain special purpose entities which are
formed with the approval of SAMA solely to facilitate certain Shariah complaint financing arrangements. The Bank has
concluded that these entities cannot be consolidated as it does not control these entities. However, the exposures to these
entities are included in the Bank’s loans and advances portfolio.

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to
sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a
principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the
asset or fiability, assuming that market participants act in their best economic interest. The fair value for financial instruments
traded in active markets at the reporting date is based on their quoted price or dealer price quotations. For ail other financial
instruments not traded in an active market, the fair value is determined by using valuation techniques deemed to be appropriate
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2.7

in the circumstances. Valuation techniques include the market approach (i.e. using recent anm's length market transactions
adjusted as necessary and with reference to the current market value of another instrument that is substantially the same) and
the income approach {i.e. discounted cash flow analysis and opfion pricing models making as much use of available and
supportable market data in a reascnably possible manner), A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account
a market participant's ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by sefling it to
another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use,

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between the levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole}) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and liabiiifies on the basis of the nature,
characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the leve! of the fair value hierarchy.

Critical accounting judgments and estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with [FRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates, assumptions and judgements that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities. it also requires management
to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Group's accounting policies. Such estimates, assumptions and
judgements are continually evauated and are based on historical experience and other factors, inciuding obtaining professional
advice and expectations of future events that are believed fo be reasonable under the circumstances. Significant areas where
management has used estimates, assumptions or exercised judgements are as follows:

{a) Impairment for credit losses on loans and advances

The Group reviews its loan portfolios to assess impairment on a quarterly basis. In determining whether an impairment loss
should be recognized, the Group makes judgments as fo whether there is any observable data indicating that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows. This evidence may include observable data indicating that there has

.been an adverse change in the payment of borrowers in a group. Management uses estimates based on historical foss

experience for loans with credit risk characteristics and objective evidence of impairment similar to those in the portfolio when
estimating its cash flows. The methodology and assumptions used for estimating both the amount and the timing of future cash
flows are reviewed regularly to reduce any difierences between loss estimates and actual loss experience.

(b) Fair value of unguoted financial instruments

The fair values of financial instruments that are not quoted in active markets are determined by using valuation techniques.
Where valuation techniques including models are used to determine fair values, they are validated and periodically reviewed by
qualified personnel independent of the area that created them. All models are calibrated to ensure that outputs reflect actual
data and comparative market prices. To the extent practical, models use only observable data, however areas such as credit
risk (both own and counterparty}, volatilities and correlations require management to make estimates. Changes in assumptions
about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.

{c} Impairment of available for sale equity investments

The Group exercises judgment to consider impairment on its available for sale equity investments. This includes determination
of a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value below its cost. In making this judgment, management evaluates among
other factors, the normal volatility in share price. In addition, management considers impairment to be appropriate when there is
evidence of deterioration in the financial position of the investee, industry and sector performance, changes in technology, and
cperational and financing cash flows,

Settlement date accounting

All reguiar way purchases and sales of financial instruments are recognized and derecognized on the settlement date. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial instruments that require delivery of assets within the time frame
generally established by regulation or convention in the market place. For financial instruments held at fair value, the Group
accounts for any change in fair values between the trade date and the reporting date.

Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

Derivative financial instruments are measured af fair value. Fair values are generally obtained by reference to quoted market
prices, discounted cash flow models and cther pricing models, as appropriate.

Derivative financial instruments are designated as held for trading unless they are part of an effective hedging relationship. Any

changes in the fair values of derivatives that are held for trading purposes are taken directly to the statements of consolidated
income.
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Hedge accounting

Hedges are classified into two categories: (a) fair value hedges which hedge the exposure to changes in the fair value of a
recognized asset or fiability; and (b) cash flow hedges which hedge exposure to variability in cash flows that is attributable to a
particular risk associated with a recognized asset or liability.

In order fo qualify for hedge accounting, the hedge is required to be highly effective at inception i.e. the changes in the fair value
or the cash flows of the hedging instrument should effectively offset corresponding changes in the hedged item, and should be
refiably measurable. At the inception of the hedge, the risk management objective and strategy is documented including the
identification of the hedging instrument, the related hedged item, the nature of the risk being hedged, and how the Group wil
assess the effectiveness of the hedging relationship. Subsequently, the hedge is required fo be assessed and determined to be
an effective hedge on an ongoing basis. Hedge accounting is discontinued when the designation is revoked, the hedging
instrument is expired or sold, terminated or exercised, or no longer qualifies for hedge accounting.

In relation to fair value hedges that meet the cniteria for hedge accounting, any gain or loss from re-measuring the hedging
instruments to change in fair value is recognized immediately in the statements of consolidated income. The corresponding
change in fair value of the hedged item is adjusted against the carrying amount and is recognized in the statements of
consolidated income. Where the fair value hedge of a special commission bearing financial instrument ceases to meet the
criteria for hedge accounting, the adjustment to the carrying value resulting from fair value changes is amortized to the
statements of consolidated income over the remaining life of the hedged item.

In relation to cash flow hedges that meet the criteria for hedge accounting, the portion of the gain or loss on the hedging
instrument that is determined to be an effective hedge is recognized initially in other reserves under equity and the ineffective
portion, if any, is recognized in the statements of consolidated income. A hedge is expected to be highly effective if the changes
in fair value or cash flows attributable to the hedged risk during the period for which the hedge is designated were offset by the
the hedging instrument in a range of 80% to 125% and were expected fo achieve such offset in future periods. Hedge
ineffectiveness is recognized in the statements of consolidated income in Net trading income. Gains or losses recognized
initially in other reserves are transferred to the statements of consolidated income in the period in which the hedged item
impacts the statements of consolidated income.

Foreign currencies

The consolidated financial statements are denominated and presented in Saudi Arabian Riyals, which is also the functional
currency of the Bank. Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into Saudi Arabian Riyals at exchange rates prevailing at
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the end of the year {other than monetary
items that form part of the net investments in a foreign operation) are transiated into Saudi Arabian Riyals at the exchange rates
prevailing at the reporting date. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the spot
exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined. Translation gains or losses on non-monetary items carried at fair
value are included as part of the fair value adjustment either in the consolidated statement of income or in equity, depending on
the underlying financial asset. Non-monetary assets and liabilifies denominated in a foreign cumency that are measured in terms
of historical cost are transtated using the spot exchange rates as at the date of the initial transaction.

Realized and unrealized gains or losses on exchange are credited or charged to the statements of consolidated income.

The assets and liabilities of overseas branches and subsidiaries are translated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the reporting
date. The statements of income of overseas branches and subsidiaries are translated at the average exchange rates for the
year. On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the franslation of the net investment in foreign entities are taken to
equity through the statement of consolidated comprehensive income.

Offsetting

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and reported net in the statements of consolidated financial position when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and the Group intends 1o settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset
and settle the liability simultaneousiy.

2.10 Revenue recognition

Speclal commission income and expense including the fees which are considered an integral part of the effective yield of a
financial instrument, are recognized in the statements of consolidated income using the effective yield method, and include
premiums amortized and discounts accreted during the year, Special commission income on loans and advances which is
received but not eamed is netted off against the related assets.

Fee from banking services are recognized on an accrual basis when the service has been provided. Commitment fees for ioans
that are likely to be drawn down are deferred and, together with the related direct cost, are recognized as an adjustment to the
effective yiefd on the loan when it is drawn down. Portfolio and other management advisory and service fees are recognized
based on the applicable service contracts, usually on a time-proportionate basfs. Fee received on asset management, wealth
management, financial planning, custody services and other similar services that are provided over an extended period of time,
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are recognized rateably over the period when the service is being provided. Dividend income is recognized when declared and
right to receive is established, Any fee income received but not earned is classified as “other Hability™.

The calculation of the effective commission rate includes all fees and points paid or received, transaction costs, and discounts or
premiums that are an integral part of the effective commission rate. Transaction costs are incremental costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or the issue of financial asset or liability.

Exchange income is recognized as and when it arises. For presentation purposes, “Exchange income, net” includes exchange
related gains and iosses from derivative financial instruments and translated foreign currency assets and labilities.

2.11 Sale and repurchase agreements

Securities sold with a commitment to repurchase at a specilied future date (repos), continue to be recognized in the statements
of consofidated financial position and are measured in accordance with related accounting policies for frading, FVIS, available
for sale and other investments at amortized cost. The counterparty liability for amounts received under these agreements is
included in due to banks and other financial institutions or customer deposits, as appropriate. The difference between the sale
and the repurchase price is treated as special commission expense and is recognized over the life of the repo agreement on an
effective yield basis.

Assets purchased with a corresponding commitment to reseli at a specified future date (reverse repos), are not recognized in
the statements of consolidated financial position, as the Group does not obtain control over the assets. Amounts paid under
these agreements are included in cash and balances with Central Banks, due from banks and other financial institutions or loans
and advances, as appropriate. The difference between the purchase and the resale price is treated as special commission
income and is recognized over the life of the reverse repo agreement on an effective yield basis.

2,12 Investments

All investment securities are initfally recognized at fair value and except for investments held at FVIS, include the acquisition
costs associated with the investment, Transaction costs if any are not added to fair value measurement at initial recognition of
investments held at FVIS and are included in the statement of consolidated income. Premiums are amortized and discounts are
accreted using the effective yield method and are taken to statements of consclidated income.

For securities that are fraded in organized financial markets, fair value is determined by reference fo the prevailing quoted
market bid prices at the close of business on the reporting date. Fair value of managed assets and investments in mutual funds
are determined by reference to declared net asset values.

For securities where there is no quoted market price, a reasonable estimate of the fair value is determined by reference to the
current market value of another instrument which is substantially the same, or is based on the expected future cash flows or the
underlying net asset base of the security.

Following initial recognition of investment securities, subsequent transfers between the various classes of investment are not
ordinarily permissible. Subsequent measurement for each class of investments are determined as follows:

a) Held at fair value through income statement {FVIS)

investments in this category are classified as either held for trading or those designated as FVIS upon initial recognition.
investments classified as frading are acquired principally for the purpose of selfing or repurchasing in short term. An instrument
which is part of a portfolio classified as held for trading, may include items held for a longer period of time due to market
conditions or position management. An investment may be designated as FVIS by the management if it eliminates or
significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency {sometimes referred to as “an accounting mismatch”) that
would otherwise arise from measuring assets or liabifities or recognizing the gains and losses on different bases; or a group of
financial assets, financial liabiiities or both is managed and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with
a documented risk management or investment sfrategy, and information about the group s provided intemally on that basis to
the Group’s key management personnel.

After initiat recognition, investments are measured at fair value and gains and losses arising from any change in the fair value
are recognized in the statements of consolidated income for the period in which it arises.

b) Available for sale

Investments that are classified as available for sale are subsequently measured at fair value. For available for sale investments
where fair value has not been hedged, any gain or loss arising from a change in the fair value is recognized directly through the
statements of consolidated comprehensive income in fair value reserve under equity until the investment is derecognized or
considered impaired, at which time the cumulative gain or foss previously recognized in equity is included in the statements of
consolidated income for the period.

Any gain or loss arising from a change in the fair value of available for sale investments that are part of an effective hedging
relationship is recognized directly in the statements of consolidated income to the extent of the changes in fair value being
hedged.

¢) Other lnvestments held at amortized cost

investments with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active marke, other than those purchased with the
intent to be sold immediately or in the short term and are not classified as available for sale, are classified as other investments
held at amortized cost. Such investments where fair value has not been hedged are stated at amortized cost, less provision for
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any impairment. Any gain or loss is recognized in the statements of consclidated income when the investment is derecognized
or impaired.

d) Held to maturity

Investments having fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity that the Group has the positive intent and ability to
hotd to matunity other than those that the Group designates as FVIS, available for sale and those that meet the definition of other
investments held at amortized cost are classified as held to maturity. Held to maturity investments are subsequently measured
at amortized cost, less provision for impairment in value. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition on an effective yield method.

Any gain or loss on such investments is recognized in the statements of consolidated income when the investment is
derecagnized or impaired.

Investments classified as held to maturity cannot ordinarily be sold or reclassified without impacting the Group's ability to use
this classification and cannot be designated as a hedged item with respect to special commission rate or prepayment risk,
reflecting the longer-term nature of these investments,

2.13 Loans and advances

Loans and advances are non-denivative financial assets having fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market.

All loans and advances are initially measured at fair value including acquisition charges associated with the loans and advances,
if any. Following initial recognition, subsequent transfers between the various classes of loans and advances is not ordinarily
permissible.

Loans and advances that are not quoted in an active market and for which fair value has not been hedged are stated at
amortized cost. For loans and advances which are hedged, the related portion of the hedged fair value is adjusted against the
carrying amount.

For presentation purposes, provision for credit losses is netted from loans and advances.

2.14 Impairment of financial assets

An assessment is made at each reporting date o determine whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group
of financial assets may be impaired. Objective evidence of impairment may include indications that the borrower is experiencing
significant financiat difficulty, default or definquency in special commission or principal payments, the probability that it will enter
bankruptey or other financial reorganization and where observable data indicates that there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows, such as changes in economic conditions that correlate with defaults. If such evidence exists, the
estimated recoverable amount of that asset Is determined and an impairment loss, based on the net present value of future
anticipated cash flows, is recognized for changes in ifs carrying amounts.

Financial assets are written off only in circumstances where effectively all possible means of recovery have been exhausted.
Once a financial asset has been written down to its estimated recoverable amount, special commission income is thereafter
recognized based on the rate of special commission that was used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of
measuring the recoverable amount.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognized, the previously recognized impairment loss is reversed by adjusting the
allowance account. The amount of the reversal is recognized in the statements of consolidated income.

Renegotiation activity is designed to manage customer relationships, maximise collection opportunilies and, if possible, avoid
foreclosure or repossession. Such activity may involve extending the payment arrangements and/or the agreement of new loan
conditions. Once the terms have been renegotiated, the loan is no longer considered past due. Management continuousty
reviews renegoliated loans to ensure that all criteria are met and that future payments are likely to occur.

(a) Impairment of financial assets held at amortized cost

A financial asset is classified as impaired when there is an objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events
that occurred atter the inifial recognition of the asset (a ‘loss event’) and that loss event has an impact on the estimated future
cash flows of the financial asset or group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

A specific provision for credit losses due to impairment of a loan or any other financial asset held at amortized cost is
established if there is objective evidence that the Group will not be able fo collect all amounts due. The amount of the specific
provision is the difference between the carrying amount and the estimated recoverable amount. The estimated recoverable
amount is the present value of expected future cash flows, including amounts estimated to be recoverable from guarantees and
collateral, discounted based on the original effective special commission rate.

In addition to specific provision for credit losses, a provision for collective impairment is made on a portfolio basis for credit
losses where there is an objective evidence that unidentified losses exist at the reparting date. This provision is estimated based
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on various factors including credit ratings allocated to a borrower or group of borrowers, the current economic conditions, the
experience the Group has had in dealing with a borrower or group of borrowers and available historical default information,
Historical loss experience is adjusted on the basis of current chservable data to reflect the effects of current conditions.

For financial assets at amortised cost, the carrying amount of the asset is adjusted either directly or through the use of an
allowance account and the amount of the adjustment is included in the statements of consolidated income.

{(b) Impairment of financial assets held as available for sale

For financial assets held as available for sale at fair value, where a loss has been recognised directly under equity, the
cumulative net loss recognised in equity is transferred to the statements of consolidated income when the asset is considered to
be impaired. If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of a debt instrument increases and the increase ¢an be objectively related
to credit event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised in the consolidated statement of income, the impairment loss
is reversed through the consolidated statement of income.

However, for equity investments held as available for sale, a significant or prolonged decline in fair value below its cost
represents objective evidence of impairment. The impairment loss against available for sale equity instruments cannot be
reversed through the statements of consolidated income as long as the asset continues to be recognised i.e. any increase in fair
value after impairment can only be recognised in equity. On de-recognition, any cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in
equity is included in the statements of consolidated income for the period.

2,15 Other real estate owned

The Group, in the ordinary course of business, acquires certain real estate against seftlement of loans and advances, Such real
estate are considered as assets held for sale and are initially recorded at the lower of the net realizable value of related loans
and advances or the current fair value of the related real estate, less any cost to sell.

Subsequent fo the initial recognifion, these other real estate owned are periodically revalued and are carried at lower of their
carrying values or the refated nef realizable value. Rental income, realized gains or fosses on disposal and unrealized losses on
revaluation are credited or charged to the statements of consolidated income.

2.16 Property and equipment

Property and equipment are stated at historical cost net of accumulated depreciation. Freehold land is not depreciated. The cost
of other properly and equipment is depreciated using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets as

follows:
Buildings 33 years
Leasehold improvements Over the lease period or economic life (10 years}), whichever is shorter
Furniture, equipment and vehicles Upto 7 years

The assets’ residual values and useful iives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting date. Gains and losses
on disposals of property and equipment are included in the statements of consolidated income.

2.17 Intangible assets - goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair value of the Bank’s share of identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities of the acquired subsidiary at the date of acquisition. Goodwill is stated at cost less any accumulated
impairment fosses, which are charged to the statements of consolidated income. An impairment test for goodwill is carried out
annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. Impairment
loss recorded against goodwilt cannot be reversed.

2.18 Financial liabilities

Alt financial liabilities including customer and money market deposits and debt securities issued are initially recognized at fair
value less transaction costs except for financial liabilities measured at FVIS where transactions cost, if any, are not deducted
from the fair value measurement at initial recognition, and are included in the statements of consolidated income.

Subsequently, all special commission bearing financial liabilities other than those held at FVIS are measured at amortized cost.
Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on settlement. Special commission bearing
deposits for which there is an associated fair value hedging relationship are adjusted for fair value to the extent hedged.

Financiaf liabilities held at FVIS comprise market linked financial liabifities which are customer deposits where the rate of retum
is benchmarked to the performance of underlying instruments such as currencies, equities or commodities. At maturity, the
repayment of principal amount to the customers is in accordance with the contractual terms. After initial recognition these
deposits are measured at falr value and any gains or losses arising from the change in fair value are included in the statements
of consolidated income for the year.

2



Samba Financial Group

2.19 Financial guarantees

In the ordinary course of business, the Group extends credit related commitments consisting of letters of credit, guarantees and
acceptances. Financial guarantees are initially recognized in the consolidated financial statements at fair value in other liabiltties,
being the value of .the premium received. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group's Hability under each guarantee is
measured at the higher of the unamortized premium and the best estimate of expenditure required to setfle any financial
obligation arising as a result of guarantees. The premium received is recognized in the statements of consolidated income over
the life of the guarantee.

2.20 Provisions

Provisions are recognized when a reliable estimate can be made for a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
events and it is more likely than not that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation.

2.21 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the statemenis of consclidated cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash, balances with Central
Banks and reverse repos (excluding statutory deposif) and due from banks and other financial institutions having an original
matunity of three months or less.

2,22 De-recognition of financial instruments

A financial asset is derecognized, when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire or the asset is
transferred and the transfer qualifies for de-recognition. In instances where the Group is assessed to have transferred a financial
asset, the asset is derecognized if the Group has fransferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership. Where the
Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership, the financial asset is
derecognized only if the Group has not retained control of the financial assel. The Group recognizes separately as assets or
fiabifittes any rights and obligations created or retained in the process.

A financial liability is derecognized only when it is extinguished, that is when the obligation specified in the contract is either
discharged, cancelled or expires.

2.23 Equity-based payments
The Bank offers its eligible employees an equity-settled share-based payment plan {the "Plan”) as approved by SAMA.

Under the terms of the Equity Based Long Term Bonus Plan, eligible employees of the Bank are offered shares at a
predetermined benchmark price for a fixed period of time. At the vesting dates determined under the ferms of the plan, the Bank
delivers the underlying allotted shares to the employees, subject to the satisfactory completion of the vesling conditions.

The cost of these plans is measured by reference to the fair value at the date on which the shares are granted. The fair value of
the plan Is determined with reference to the market value of the shares at the inception of the plan using the discounted cash
flow modet.

The cost of the plans is recognized over the period in which the service condition is fulfilled, ending on the date on which the
relevant employees become fully entitled the shares (‘the vesting date’). The cumulative expense recognized for these plans at
each reporting date until the vesting date, reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and the Bank’s best
estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to the statements of consolidated
income for a period represents the movement in cumulative expense recognized as at the beginning and end of that period.

The Bank, with the approval from SAMA, has entered into an agreement with an independent third-party to acquire a beneficial
interest in the underlying shares solely to manage the price risks associated with the above plans. Under the provisions of such
agreement, the Bank, at no point, becomes the legal owner of the underlying shares.

2.24 Employee benefit obligations

The Bank operates an end of service benefit plan for its employees. The provision under this plan is made based on an actuarial
valuation of the Bank’s Fability under the Saudi Arabian Labour Law and in accordance with the local statutory requirements of
the foreign branches and subsidiaries.

2.25 Treasury stock

Treasury stocks are recorded at cost and presented as a deduction from the equity as adjusted for any transaction costs,
dividends and gains or losses con sale of such stocks. Subsequent to their acquisition, these stocks are carried at the amount
equal to the consideration paid.

These stocks are acquired by the Bank with the approvat of SAMA, primarily for discharging its obligation under its equity-based
payment plans and also include stocks acquired in settiement of customer debt.
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2.26 Zakat and income taxes

Under Saudi Arabian Zakat and Income tax laws, Zakat and income taxes are the liabilities of the Saudi and foreign
shareholders, respectively.

Zakat is computed on the Saudi shareholders’ share of equity or net income using the basis defined under the Zakat regulations.
Income taxes are computed on the foreign shareholders’ share of net income for the year.

Zakat and income taxes are not charged to the Bank's statements of consolidated income. They are paid on behalf of and are
deducted from the dividends paid to the shareholders. Please refer to Note 2.29 for change in accounting policy. Overseas
branches and subsidiaries are subject to income tax as per rules and regulations of the country in which they reside.

2.27 Investment management services

The Bank offers certain investment management and advisory services to its customers through its subsidiary. These services
include portfolio management on discretionary and non-discretionary basis and management of investment funds In consultation
with professional investment advisors. The Bank’s investment in these funds is included in the FVIS or available for sale
investments and fees earned are disclosed under related party transactions.

Determining whether the Bank controls such an investment fund usually depends on the assessment of the aggregate economic
interests of the Bank in the fund and the investors' right to remove the fund manager. Based on the assessment carried out by
the Bank, it has concluded that it acts as an agent for the investors in all the cases and therefore it has not consolidated these
funds in these financial statements.

In addition, the assets held in a trust or fiduciary capacity are not treated as assets of the Bank or that of its subsidiary and
accordingly are not included in the Group's statements of consoidated financial position.

2.28 Shariah approved banking products

In addition to conventional banking, the Bank offers its customers certain Shariah compliant banking products, which are
approved by its Shariah Board.

All Shariah compliant banking products are accounted for using IFRS and are in conformity with the accounting policies
described in these consolidated financial statements.

2.29 Change in accounting policies

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year except for the:-

« amendment to accounting policy relating to Zakat and income tax. The Bank now accrues liabilities for Zakat and income
tax on a quarterly basis. Previously, Zakat and income tax were deducted from dividends upon payment of dividend to the
shareholders and were recognized as liabllities at that time. The above change in accounting policy has been
refrospectively accounted for in these consolidated financial statements and therefore, corresponding figures have been
restated and the effects of the above change are disclosed in note 37 to the consolidated financial statements. Consistent
with previous years, Zakat and income tax continues to be charged fo retained eamings as required by SAMA circular
relating to accounting for Zakat and Income tax.

+ amendments to IAST: Statement of cash flows on disclosure initiative - This amendment introduces an additional
disclosure that will enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing activities.
This amendment is part of the IASB's Disclosure Initiative, which continues to explore how financial statement disclosure
can be improved. This did not have any significant impact on the financial position or the performance of the Group.

3. Cash and balances with Central Banks

2017 2016
SAR ‘000 SAR ‘000
Cash in hand 1,214,448 1,395,760
Statutory deposit 9,242,179 9,560,219
Current account 665,026 405,159
Money market placements 14,073,413 25,983,376
Total 25,195,066 37,344,514

In accordance with the Banking Control Law and regulations issued by SAMA, the Group is required to maintain a statutory deposit
with SAMA and other Central Banks at stipulated percentages of its demand, savings, time and other deposits, as calculated at the
end of each month. Money market placements represent securities purchased under an agreement to re-sell {reverse repos) with
SAMA.
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4. Due from banks and other financial institutions

2017 2016
SAR ‘000 SAR ‘000
Current accounts 3,230,367 4,553,282
Money market placements 7,801,113 5,046,374
Total 11,031,450 9,599,656
The qualitative analysis of due from banks and other financial institutions is as follows:
2017 2016
SAR ‘000 SAR ‘000
investment grade 10,643,643 9,253,863
Non Investment Grade 387,837 345,793
Total 11,031,480 9,599,656
5. Investments, net
a} Investment securities are classified as follows:
i} Held at fair value through income statement (FVIS)
Domestic Internationat Total
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016

SAR ‘000 SAR ‘000 SAR ‘000 SAR ‘000 SAR ‘000 SAR ‘000
Fixed rate securities 262,159 127,676 53,187 733,808 315,346 861,564
Structured credits - - 62,784 80,645 62,784 90,645
Hedge funds - - 1,898,941 1,848,775 1,898,941 1,848,775
Equities - - - 269 - 269
Total Held at FVIS 262,159 127,676 2,014,912 2,673,577 2,277,071 2,801,253

FVIS investments above inciude investments held for trading of SAR 312.8 million (2016 SAR 861.8 million). The
designated FVIS investments included above are so designated when the financial instruments include one or more
embedded derivatives or are being evaluated on a fair value basis and are in accordance with the documented risk
management strategy of the Group.

ii} Available for sale

Domestic International Total
2017 2016 2017 2018 2017 2018
SAR ‘000 SAR ‘000 SAR ‘000 SAR ‘000 SAR ‘000 SAR ‘000
Fixed rate securities 2,378,119 2,399,443 7,369,155 6,727,937 9,747,274 9,127,380
Floating rate notes 4221774 2,689,583 6,791,386 45633711 11,019,160 7,252,954
Private equity - - 620,956 671,500 620,956 671,500
Equities 2,918,704 2,661,369 80,492 31,911 2,999,196 2,693,280
Total Available for sale 9,524,597 7,750,395 14,861,989 11,994,719 24,386,586 19,745,114
i} Held to maturity
{nternational Total
2017 2016 2017 2016
SAR ‘000 SAR ‘000 SAR ‘000 SAR ‘000
Fixed rate securities 3,178,930 2,981,574 3,178,930 2,981,574
Totat Held to maturity 3,178,930 2,981,574 3,178,930 2,981,574
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iv} Other investments held at amortized cost, net

Domestic International Total

2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
SAR ‘000 SAR ‘000 SAR ‘000 SAR ‘000 SAR ‘000 SAR ‘000
Fixed rate securities 18,148,605 10,640,725 157,452 137,214 18,306,057 10,777,939
F}oating rate notes 15,294,513 14,923,715 - - 15,294,513 14,923,715
Mudaraba investments - - 469,253 163,215 459,253 163,215

Total other investments
held at amortized cost 33,443 118 25,564,440 626,705 300,429 34,069,823 25,864,869
Total investments, net 43,229,874 33442511 20,682,536 17,950,299 63,912,410 51,392,810
b} The composition of investments is as follows:
2017 (SAR'000) 2016 {(SAR’000)

Quoted Unguoted Total Quoted Unquoted Total
Fixed rate securities 12,584,217 18,963,390 31,547,607 12435562 11,312,895 23,748,457
Floating rate notes 10,852,760 15,460,913 26,313,673 7,110,269  15,066400 22,176,669
Equities 3,003,504 616,648 3,620,152 2,697,975 667,074 3,365,049
Mudaraba investments - 469,253 469,253 - 163,215 163,215
Others 62,784 1,898,941 1,961,725 90,645 1,848,775 1,939,420
Total 26,503,265 37,409,145 63,912,410 22334451 29,058,359 51,392,810

Unquoted securities principally comprise Saudi govemment development bonds, Saudi floating rate notes, sukuks, treasury bills,
hedge funds and private equities. In view of the nature of the market for such securities, carrying values are determined either by
using an appropriate pricing model or net asset values, as provided by independent third parties. Included in fixed rate securities
above are securities pledged under repurchase agreements with other banks and customers whose carrying value at December 31,
2017 was SAR 4,867 million (2016; SAR 2,967 million). Also see note 17(d).

Mudaraba is an arrangement approved by the Sharah Board under which the Bank provides funds to customers for a specified
business activity. The retums under such arrangements are shared between the Bank and customer on a predetermined basis.
Mudaraba investments are included under ‘Other investments held at amortized cost’. The fair values of these Mudaraba investments
are not expected to be significantly different from their carrying values.

c) The analysis of unrecognized gains and losses and fair values of held to maturity and other investments held at amortized cost

are as follows;
2017 {SAR'000} 2016 (SAR’000}
Gross Gross Gross Gross
Carrying unrecogni  unrecognize Carrying unrecognized  unrecognized
value zed gain d loss Fair value value gain logs Fair value

Held to maturity:
Fixed rate securities 3,178,930 82,454 3,261,384 2,981,574 150,313 3,131,887
Total held to maturity 3,176,920 82,454 3,261,384 2,981,574 150,313 3,131,887
Other investments held at amortized cost:
Fixed rate securities 18,306,057 3155 (434,785) 17,874 427 10,777,939 3,655 {267,553) 10,514,041
Floating rate notes 15,294,513 - 15,294,513 14,923,715 - - 14,923,715
Mudaraba investments 469,253 - 469,253 163,215 - - 163,215
Total other investments

held at amortized cost 34,069,823 3,185 {434,785) 33,638,193 25,864,869 3,855 {267,553} 25,600,971
Grand total 37,248,753 85,609 {434,785) 36,899,577 26,846,443 153,968 {267,553} 28,732,858
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d) Credit quality of investments

The credit quality of investment portfolio is as follows:

2017 2016
SAR ‘000 SAR ‘000
Saudi government, government backed bonds and treasury bills 38,946,758 30,035,993
investment grade 21535,824 17,878,650
Non-investment grade 401,570 422,586
Others 3,028,258 3,055,581
Total 63,912,410 51,392,810

The Bank uses its internaf ratings to rate the credit quality of the investment portfolio. Investments classified under investment grade
above comprise of credit exposures equivaient to Aaa to Baa3 ratings under Moody's ratings methodology. Investments classified as
‘Others’ mainly comprise of equities and hedge funds which are not rated.

e} Theinvestments by counter-party are as follows:

2017 2016
SAR ‘000 SAR ‘000
Government and quasi government 46,416,280 37,739,592
Banks and other financial institutions 12,326,385 8,568,277
Corporate 2,197 525 2,091,666
Hedge funds 1,898,941 1,848,775
Others 1,073,279 1,144,500
Total 63,912,410 51,392,810
6. Loans and advances, net
a} Loans and advances are classified as follows:
Commercial
Credit Consumer loans and
2017 (SAR 000} cards loans advances Others Total
Held at amortized cost:
Performing loans and advances 1,549,623 17,021,699 99,786,440 174,273 118,532,035
Non-performing loans and advances ' - 13,363 1,103,460 10,492 1,127,315
Total held at amortized cost 1,549,623 17,035,062 100,889,900 184,765 119,659,350
Provision for credit losses (52,442) {226,693) (1,688,678) (6,808) {1,974,621)
Loans & advances, net 1,497,181 16,808,369 99,201,222 177,957 117,664,729
Commercial
Credit Consumer loans and

2016 (SAR '000) cards loans advances Others Total
Held at amortized cost:
Performing loans and advances 1,389,502 18,267,992 105,944,113 428,207 126,029,314
Non-performing loans and advances - 14,565 1,050,178 11,448 1,076,191
Total held at amortized cost 1,389,502 18,282,557 106,994,291 439,655 127,106,005
Prevision for credit losses (41,028) {227,337} {1,586,270) {17,040} {1,871,675)
Loans & advances, net 1,348,474 18,055,220 105,408,021 422,615 125,234,330

Loans and advances, net includes Shariah-approved banking products in respect of Murabaha, ljara and Tawarrug finance, which
are stated at amortized cost less provision for credit losses amounting to SAR 71,079 million (2016 :SAR 74,953 million).
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b} Movement in provision for credit losses are as follows:

Commercial
Credit Consumer foans and

2017 (SAR "000) cards loans advances Others Total
Balance at the beginning of the year 41,028 227,337 1,586,270 17,040 1,871,675
Provided during the year, net 11,414 592 165,858 {9,418} 168,446
Bad debts written off - (115) (43,816) {30) {43,961)
Recoveries of amounts previously

provided - (325) (16,535) (274) {17,134)
Exchange adjustment - {796) (3,099) {510) {4,405)
Balance at the end of the year 52,442 226,693 1,688,678 6,808 1,974,621

Commercial
Credit Consumer loans and

2016 (SAR '000) cards loans advances Others Total
Balance at the beginning of the year 42,867 207,190 1,735,167 32,526 2,017,750
Provided during the year, net (1,839) 21,236 66,874 {14,638) 71,633
Bad debts written off - (213 {210,780) {481) (211,474)
Recoveries of amounts previously

provided - {876} (7.314) {392) {8,582)
Exchange adjustment - - 2,323 25 2,348
Balance at the end of the year 41,028 227,337 1,586,270 17,040 1,871,675

During the year, the Group has charged an amount of SAR 287.2 million {2016: SAR 200.1 million) to the statements of consolidated
income on account of provision for credit losses which is nef of recoveries of amounts previously provided and net direct write-offs.

¢) Credi quality of loans and advances

i} Ageing of loans and advances past due but not impaired

Commercial
Credit Consumer loans and
2017 (SAR ‘000) cards loans advances Others Total
Less than 90 days 101,917 779,080 1,259,391 - 2,140,388
90 days and more 31,795 93,983 118,039 - 243,817
Total 133,712 873,063 1,377,430 - 2,384,205
Commercial
Credit Consumer loans and
2016 (SAR ‘000) cards loans advances Others Total
Less than 90 days 106,554 763,243 1,033,313 - 1,903,110
90 days and mare 40,564 99,286 - - 139,850
Total 147,118 862,529 1,033,313 . 2,042,960

27



Samba Financial Group

fi}  Economic sector risk concentration for the loans and advances and the related credit loss provision as follows:

Non- Credit loss Loans &

2017 (SAR ‘000) Peiforming performing provision advances, net

Government and quast government 681,854 - 242 681,612
Banks and other financiat institutions 5,028,716 - 19,627 5,009,089
Agriculture and fishing 4,050,608 440 9,415 4,041,633
Manufacturing 18,761,309 192,262 251,697 18,701,874
Mining and quarrying 1,436,027 - 7,019 1,429,008
Electricity, water, gas and health services 12,059,269 20,048 46,908 12,032,409
Building and construction 16,648,939 710,701 1,001,986 16,357,654
Commerce 18,110,827 165,672 161,264 18,115,235
Transportation and communication 9,153,683 1,402 38,011 9,117,074
Services 2,775,771 941 26,165 2,750,547
Consumer loans and credit cards 18,571,322 13,363 279,135 18,305,550
Other 11,253,710 22,486 133,152 11,143,044
Total 118,532,035 1,127,315 1,974,621 117,684,729

Non- Credit loss Loans &

2016 (SAR ‘000) Performing performing provision advances, net

Government and quasi government 818,687 - - 818,687
Banks and other financial institutions 4,053,931 - 22,422 4,031,509
Agriculfure and fishing 4,621,550 318 13,733 4,608,135
Manufacturing 19,215,021 102,842 288,997 19,028,866
Mining and quarrying 1,323,914 - 6,874 1,317,040
Electricity, water, gas and health services 11,523,444 21,172 47187 11,497,429
Building and construction 16,130,496 734,208 769,642 16,095,062
Commerce 22,220,294 175,890 187,153 22,209,031
Transportation and communication 11,065,763 1,402 55,743 11,011,422
Services 2,983,367 2,481 45,786 2,940,062
Consumer loans and credit cards 19,657,494 14,565 268,365 19,403,694
Cther 12,415,853 23,313 165,773 12,273,393
Total 126,029,814 1,076,191 1,871,675 125,234,330

iiiy Analysis of loans and advances which are neither past due nor impaired:

2017 2016
SAR ‘000 SAR 000
investment grade loans and advances 17,077,301 17,711,182
Consumer loans and credit cards 17,095,016 18,647,846
Non-investment grade 80,974,644 86,859,155
Unrated 1,000,869 768,671
Total 116,147,830 123,986,854

The Bank uses its intemal ratings to rate the credit quality of the loans and advances portfolio. Loans and advances classified under
investment grade above comprise of credit exposures equivalent to Aaa to Baa3 ratings under Moody’s ratings methodology.

d} Collateral
Fair value of colfateral held by Bank against loans and advances by each category are as follows:
2017 2016
SAR ‘000 SAR ‘000

Neither past due nor impaired 63,021,343 57,879,057
Past due but not impaired 1,952,858 12,862,323
Impaired 244 755 249,125
Total 65,218,956 70,990,505

The collateral consists of deposits, financial guarantees, marketable securities and real estate. Thase collaterals which are not readily
convertible into cash (i.e. real estate) are accepted by the Bank with the intent for them to be disposed of in case of default by the

customer.
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7. Property and equipment, net

Fumiture,

Land and Leasehold equipment 2017 2016

buildings  improvements  and vehicles Total Total

(SAR’000} {SAR'000) {SAR'000) (SAR’000) {SAR'000)
Cost
Balance af the beginning of the year 915,033 656,067 1,345,904 2,917,004 2,846,823
Additions 3,459 22,57 70,396 96,426 87,739
Disposals - {2,668) {4,118} {6,786} (16,279)
Exchange adjustment - - {1,048} {1,048) {1,279)
Balance at the end of the year 918,492 675,970 1,411,134 3,005,596 2,917,004
Accumulated depreciation
Balance at the beginning of the year 574,769 536,984 1,200,166 2,320,919 2,210,579
Charge for the year 11,166 35,150 77,249 123,565 121,344
Disposals - {2,516) {4,018) {6,534) {10,560)
Exchange adjustment {12 - (152) {164} (441}
Balance at the end of the year 585,923 569,618 1,282,245 2,437,786 2,320919
Net book value as at December 31, 2017 332,569 106,352 128,889 567,810
Net book value as at December 31, 2016 340,264 119,083 136,738 396,085
Capital work in progress 2,071,074 1,914,095
Total 2,638,884 2,510,180

8. Other assets
2017 2016
SAR ‘000 SAR ‘000

Accounts receivable 158,871 160,776
Other real estate, net 4,757 11,415
Goodwili 21,404 22,604
Other 448,770 770,243
Total 633,802 965,038

9. Derivatives

In the ordinary course of business, the Group utifizes the following derivative financial instruments for both trading and hedging
purposes:

Swaps are contractual agreements to exchange one set of cash flows for another. For commission rate swaps, counterparties
generally exchange fixed and floating rate commission payments in a single currency without exchanging principal. For currency
swaps, fixed commission payments and principal are exchanged in different currencies. For cross currency commission rate swaps,
principal, fixed and floating commission payments are exchanged in different currencies.

Forwards and futures are contractual agreements to efther buy or sell a specified currency, commodity or financial instrument at a
specified price and date in the future. Forwards are customized contracts transacted in the over the counter market, Foreign currency
and commission rate futures are transacted in standardized amounts on regulated exchanges.

Forward commission rate agreements are individually negotiated commission rate futures that call for a cash seltlement for the
difference between a conlracted commission rate and the market rate on a specified future date, based on a notional principal for an
agreed period of time.

Options are contraciual agreements under which the sefler (writer) grants the purchaser (holder) the right, but not the obligation, to
either buy or sell at a fixed future date or at any lime during a stipulated period, a specified amount of a currency, commodity, equity
or financiat instrument at a pre-defermined price.

Swaptions are oplions on swaps and entail an option on the fixed rate component of a swap. An option on a swap provides the

purchaser or holder of the option the right, but not the obligation to enter into a swap where it pays fixed rates against receipt of a
floating rate index at a future date.
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Derivatives held for trading purposes

Most of the Group’s derivative trading activities relate to sales, positioning and arbitrage. Sales activifies involve offering products to
customers in order to, inter alia, enable them to transfer, modify or reduce current and future risks. Positioning involves managing
market risk positions with the expectation of profiting from favourable movements in prices, rates or indices. Arbitrage involves
identifying, with the expectation of profiting from, price differentials between markets or products.

Derivatives held for hedging purposes

As part of its asset and liability management, the Group uses derivatives for hedging purposes in order to adjust its own exposure to
currency and commission rate nsks. This is generally achieved by hedging specific transactions as well as by strategic hedging
against overall statements of financial position exposures. Strategic hedging does not qualify for special hedge accounting and the
related derivatives are accounted for as heid for trading.

The Group uses forward foreign exchange contracts and currency swaps to hedge against specifically identified currency risks. in
addition, the Group uses commission rate swaps and commission rate futures to hedge against the commission rate risk arising from
specifically identified fixed commission rate exposures. The Group also uses commission rate swaps to hedge against the cash flow
risk arising on cerlain floating rate exposures. In all such cases, the hedging relationship and objective, including the details of the
hedged items and hedging instrument are formally documented and the transactions are accounted for as fair value or cash flow
hedges.

The table below shows the positive and negative fair values of derivative financial instruments, together with the notional amounts
analyzed by the term to maturity. The notional amounts, which provide an indication of the volumes of the transactions outstanding at
the year-end, do not necessarily reflect the amounts of future cash flows involved. These notional amounts, therefore, are neither
indicative of the Group’s exposure to credit risk, which is generally limited to the positive fair value of the derivatives, nor to market
risk.

All derivatives are reported at fair value on the statements of consolidated financial position, In addition, where applicable, all such
contracts covered by master netting agreements are reported net. Gross positive or negative fair values are netted with the cash
collateral received from or paid fo a given counterparty pursuant to a vafid master netting agreement,

The analysis of derivative financial instruments and the related fair values together with the notional amounts classffied by the term to
maturity is as follows:

Notional amounts by term to maturity

Positive Negative Notional Within 3 1-5 Over 5
Fairvalue  Fair value amount Months 3-12 Months Years Years
2017 SAR 000 SAR ‘000 SAR ‘000 SAR'000 SAR000 SAR'000 SAR'000
Held for trading
Commission rate swaps 6,231,314 4,970,558 141,672,493 9,823,864 15,498,684 91,988,025 24,361,920
Commission rate futures and
options 35,455 40,300 12,404,532 5933629 840,500 4,972,220 658,183
Forward foreign exchange
contracts 139,574 186,108 20118406 11,719,330 12,350,851 5,048,225 -
Currency options 120,316 121,395 8,000,585 3,838,029 3,890,739 271,817 -
Swaptions 16,537 233 4,498,310 - 4,498,310 -
Equity and commodity options 115,618 115,618 1,342 478 77,478 - 1,265,000 -
Held as cash flow hedges
Commission rate swaps 43,218 14,261 4,747 500 - 770,000 952,500 3,025,000
Sub-otal 6,702,032 5448473 201,784,304 31,392,330 37,849,084 104,497,787 28,045,103
Cash collateral received / paid (187,324) (1,472,175}
Total 6,514,708 3,976,298
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Notional amounts by term to maturity

Positive Negative Notional Within 3 1-5 Over 5
Fairvalue  Fairvalue amount Months 3-12 Months Years Years

2016 SAR ‘000 SAR 000 SAR ‘000 SAR000 SAR'000 SAR000 SAR’000
Held for trading
Commission rate swaps 3,788,223 3388485 111,190,682 903,214 18,325,706 63,252,704 27,709,058
Commission rate futures and

options 25,100 30,368 5011454 226,938 28125 3,597,408 1,158,983
Forward foreign exchange

confracts 231,433 104,650 34,929,272 18,314,824 13,768,804 2845644 .
Currency opfions 318,614 297,223 38,767,990 13,170,387 18,038,140 7,559,463 -
Swaptions 61,141 53,710 5,625,000 - 5,625,000 - -
Equity and commodity options 119,700 119,700 1,847,442 125,053 226,059 1,496,330 -
Held as fair value hedges:
Commission rate futures and

options - 10,378 1,613,625 1,613,625 - . -
Held as cash flow hedges
Commissicn rate swaps 47,301 90,999 7,003,200 - 280,700 4,660,000 2,062,500
Sub-total 4,591,512 4,095,513 206,988,665 34,354,041 58,292,534 83,411,549 30,930,541
Cash collaterat received / paid (149,453} (2,609,884
Totat 4,442,059 1,485,629

The tables below show a summary of hedged items, the nature of the risk being hedged, the hedging instrument and their fair values:

Nature of Positive Negative
Description of hedged items Fair value hedge  Hedging instrument fairvalue  fair value
2017 (SR ‘000)
Floating rate notes 4,756,723 Cashflow Commission rate swaps 43,218 14,261
2016 (SR 000}
Floating rate notes 7,000,158 Cashflow Commission rate swaps 47,301 90,999
Fixed rate notes 1,411,406 Fair Value Commission rate futures and options - 10,378
Cash fiow hedges

The Group is exposed to variability in future cash flows on non-trading assets and liabilities which bear special commission at a
variable rate. The Group generally uses special commission rate swaps as hedging instruments to hedge against these special
commission rate risks. Also, as a result of firm commitments in foreign currencies, the Group is exposed to foreign exchange and
special commission rate risks which are hedged with cross currency special commission rate swaps.

Below is the schedule indicating as at 31 December, the periods when the cash flows arising from the hedged item are expected to
occur and when they are expected to affect statements of consolidated income:

2017 {SAR’000) Within 3 months  3.12 months 1-5 Years Over 5 years Total
Cash inflows 17,828 86,830 489,780 422,518 1,016,956
2016 (SAR'000) Within 3 months  3-12 months 1-5 Years Over 5 years Total
Cash inflows 36,494 120,666 799,943 339,177 1,296,280

Approximately 25% {2016: 37%) of the positive fair value of the Group's derivatives are entered into with financial institutions and
less than 13% (2016: 10%) of the positive fair value contracts are with any single counter-party at the reporting date.

Due to banks and other financial institutions

2017 2016
SAR ‘000 SAR ‘000
Current accounts 580,665 459,948
Money market deposits 5,970,799 10,420,830
Total 6,551,464 10,880,778

Money market deposits include deposits against the sale of fixed rate securities of SAR 3,823 million (2016; SAR 2,403 miflion} with
an agreement to repurchase the same at fixed fufure dates.
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Customer deposits
Customer deposits comprise of the following:

2017 2016
SAR ‘000 SAR ‘000
Demand 99,546,112 103,678,452
Savings 7,224.513 7,009,304
Time 54,884,115 53,407,586
Other 6,332,831 7,980,374
Total 167,987,571 172,075,718

Time deposits include deposits accepted under Shariah approved banking product contracts of SAR 29,201 million (2016:
SAR 27,716 million).

Time deposits include deposits against sale of fixed rate securities of SAR 681 million (2016: SAR 630) with agreements to
repurchase the same at fixed fulure dates. Other customer deposits include SAR 1,322 milfion (2016: SAR 1,308 million) of margins
held against facilities extended to customers.

Included in time deposits are market finked customer deposits amounting fo SAR 560 milion {2016: SAR 444.2 million), which are
designated FVIS liabilities. The deposits are so designated when they include one or more embedded derivatives or are being
evaluated on a fair value basis in accordance with the documented risk management strategy of the Group.

The above include foreign currency deposits as follows:

2017 2016
SAR 000 SAR ‘000
Demand 10,610,726 12,468,112
Savings 941,626 813,406
Time 10,917,618 10,194,982
Other 338,124 283,022
Total 22,808,094 23,759,522
Other liabilities
2017 20186
SAR ‘000 SAR 000
Accounts payable 976,380 834,116
Employee benefit obligations (note 13) 436,604 375,405
Unearned fee income 279,529 321,284
Customer initial public offering deposits 21,340 36,818
Cther 2,699,741 2,934,073
Total 4,413,594 4,501,696

Employee benefit obligations

The Bank operates an End of Service benefit plan for its employees based on the Saudi Arabian Labor Laws. Accruals are made in
accordance with the actuarial valuation under projected unit credit method while the benefit payments obligation is discharged as and
when it falls due. The amounts recognized in the statement of consolidated financial position and movement in the obligation during
the year based on its present value are as follows:

2017 2016
SAR'000 SAR’000
Balance at the beginning of the period 373,257 368,834
Current service cost 78,343 32,857
Special commission expense 15,475 13,915
Benefits paid {38,549) {42,349)
Batance at the end of the period 428,526 373,257

An independent actuarial valuation is carried out every year for posiion ending October 31st. Provision held against actuarial
valuation as of the end of year is SR 436.6 million (2016: SR 375.4 million). There are various assumptions used in determination of
present value of defined benefit obfigation of which discount rate and salary increase level are principal which are assumed to be at
4% (2016: 4%) and 2% (2016: 2%) respectively.
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The actuarial liability would be increased fo SR 451.3 million (2016: SR 394.5 miliion) had the discount rate used in the assumption
been lower by 1% and the liabifity would be decreased to SR 408.1 million (2016; SR 354.2 miltion) had the discount rate used in the
assumption been higher by 1%. Simitarly, the actuarial liability would be increased to SR 439.9 million (2016: SR 383.8 million) had
the salary increase rate used in the assumption been higher by 1% and the liability would be decreased to SR 418.3 milfion (2016:
SR 363.7 million) had the salary increase rate used in the assumption been lower by 1%. The weighted average duration of the
defined benefit obligation is approximately 4 years.

Share capital

The authorized, issued and fully paid share capital of the Bank consists of 2,000 million shares (2016: 2,000 million shares) of SAR
10 each.

Statutory and general reserves

In accordance with the Banking Control Law of the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and the Articles of Association of the Bank, a minimum
of 25% of the net income for the year is required to be fransferred to a statutory reserve until this reserve equals the paid up capital of
the Bank. The statutory reserve is currently not available for distribution. During the year, the bank transferred SAR 1,256 million
(2016: 1,251 million) to the statutory reserve from the retained eamings.

In addition, as and when considered appropriate, the Bank makes an appropriation to general reserve for general banking risks.

Fair value reserves

The movement in fair value reserves during the year atiributable to the equity shareholders of the Group is set out below:

Avatlable for
Cash flow  sale financial
2017 (SR’000) hedges assets Total
Balance at beginning of the year {126,493) 217,056 80,563
Change in fair value during the year 153,826 130,481 284,307
Transfer fo statements of consolidated income (56,199) (29,037) {85,196}
Balance at end of the year {28,826) 318,500 289,674
Available for
Cash flow  sale financial
2016 {SR’000) hedges assets Total
Balance at beginning of the year 8,067 365,824 373,881
Change in fair value during the year {82,789} (109,273) {192,062)
Transfer to statements of consolidated income {51,761) (39,495) {91,256)
Balance at end of the year {126,493} 217,056 90,563

Commitments and contingencies

a) Legal proceedings

No provision has been made in relation o legal proceedings existing as at December 31, 2017 and 2016 as no material costs
are expected to be incurred.

b) Capital commitments

The Group’s capital commitments as at December 31, 2017 amounted to SAR 242 million (2016: SAR 166 million), These
commitments represent contractual obligations in respect of building, construction and equipment purchases.

¢) Credit refated commitments and contingencies

Credit related commitments and confingencies mainly comprise letters of credit, guarantees, acceptances and irrevocable
commilments to extend credit. The primary purpose of these instruments is to ensure that funds are available to a customer as
required. Guarantees and standby letters of credit, which represent imevocable assurances that the Group will make payments
in the event that a customer cannot meet its obligations to third parties, carry the same credit risk as {oans and advances.
Documentary letters of credit which are wiitten undertakings by the Group on behalf of a customer authorizing a third party to
draw drafts on the Group up to a stipulated amount under specific terms and conditions, are generally collateralized by the
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underlying shipments of goods to which they relate, and therefore have less risk. Acceptances comprise undertakings by the
Group to pay bills of exchange drawn on customers. The Group expects most acceptances to be presented before being
reimbursed by the customers. Cash requirements under these instruments are considerably less than the amount of the related
commitment because the Group generally expects the customers to fulfill their primary obligation.

Commitments to extend credit represent the unused portion of approved facilities to extend credit, principally in the form of foans
and advances, guarantees and letters of credit. With respect to credit risk on commitments fo extend credit, the Group is
potenttally exposed to a loss in an amount equal to the total unused commitments. However, the likely amount of loss, which
cannot readily be quantified, is expected to be less than the total unused commitment as most commitments to extend credit are
contingent upon customers maintaining specific credit standards. The total outstanding commitments to extend credit do not
necessarily represent future cash requirements as many of these commitments may expire or terminate without being funded.

The confractual maturity structure for the Group's credit related commitments and contingencies are as follows:

2017 (SAR ‘000) Within 3 3.12 1-5 Over 5

months months years years Total
Letters of credit 2,882,614 2,617,101 305,504 - 5805219
Letters of guarantee 10,523,730 15,340,490 8,185,941 1,815 34,051,976
Acceptances 1,009,302 811,517 3,847 9,376 1,834,042
irrevocable commitments to extend credit 1,383,172 694,508 896,147 100,000 3,073,827
Other - 8,020 71,228 607,929 687,177
Total 15,798,818 19,471,636 9,462,667 719,120 45,452,241
2016 (SAR °000) Within 3 312 1-5 Over§

months months years years Total
Letters of credit 3137414 2,316,020 510,234 2,250 5965918
Letters of guarantee 7,750,835 17,826,725 10,593,883 2344 36,173,787
Acceplances 894,851 548,300 9,448 - 1,452,599
Irrevocable commitments to extend credit 1,341,992 1,516,984 269,746 54,302 3,183,024
Other - - 36,723 186,048 222,171
Total 13,125,092 22,208,029 11,420,034 244,944 46,998,099

The unused portion of commitments outstanding as at December 31, 2017 which can be revoked unitaterally at any time by the
Group amounts to SAR 88,057 million (2016: SAR 95,823 million}

The analysis of credit related commitments and contingencies by counter-party are as follows:

2017 2016
SAR ‘000 SAR ‘000
Corporate 40,345,805 42,729,752
Banks and other financial insitutions 4,804,294 4,121,101
Other 302,142 147,246
Total 45,452,241 46,998,099
Assets pledged
Assets pledged as collateral with other financial instituions and others as security against borrowings are as follows;
2017 2016
SAR'000 SAR'000
Related Related

Agsets liabilities Asgsets liabilities

Investments classified as available for sale and FVIS 4,867,283 4,854,533 2,967,304 3,033,470

Operating lease commitments

There are no non-cancelable operating lease commitments as of December 31, 2017 and 20186,
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Special commission income and expense

Special commission income on;
Investments:

Availabfe for sale

Held to maturity

Other investments held at amortized cost

Due from banks and other financial institutions
Loans and advances
Total

Special commission expense on:

Due to banks and other financial institutions
Customer deposits

Total

Fee and commission income, net

Fee and commission income on:
Share trading and fund management
Trade finance

Corporate finance and advisory
Other banking services

Total

Fee and commission expense on:
Cards

Other banking services

Total

Fee and commission income, net

Trading income {loss), net

Debt securities
Derivatives and others
Total

Gains on non-trading investments, net

Available for sale
Other investments held at amortized cost

Total

Other operating income, net

Gain on disposal of property and equipment
Gain on disposal of other real estate
Dividend income

Other income

Total

2017 2016
SAR ‘000 SAR ‘000
658,803 604,424
106,048 123,571
675,793 543,693
1,440,644 1,271,688
352,195 201,887
5,134,901 5,218,177
6,927,740 6,691,752
210,298 143,148
985,217 1,166,320
1,195,515 1,309,468
2017 2016
SAR ‘000 SAR ‘000
295 544 356,552
378,606 387,587
116,492 218,674
803,532 774,075
1,594,174 1,736,888
(115,462) (109,870)
(55,977) (42,211)
(171,439) {152,081)
1,422,735 1,584,807
2017 2016
SAR ‘000 SAR ‘000
15,653 16,867
78,724 (31,405)
94,377 (14,538)
2017 2016
SAR ‘000 SAR ‘000
28,195 39,495
842 (3,728)
29,037 35,767
2017 2016
SAR ‘000 SAR ‘000
7.792 73
2,341 6,770
152,772 140,496
1,512 11,482
164,417 158,821
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23, Salaries and employee related expenses

The Bank’s compensation policy complies with the regulatory requirements of SAMA and international standards of Financial Stability
Forum with respect to compensation. This policy is applicable to all businesses across the Group in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia as
well as its overseas branches and fully owned subsidiaries as far as if is consistent with the legal and regulatory requirements of
respective host countries where the Group operates. SBL also has a compensation pelicy in place which is in line with the SAMA
guidefines and the local rules and regulations

The policy defines the level and categories of key employees whose goals setting, performance measurement and appraisal
processes are based on a balanced scorecard approach that finks the financial parformance evaluation with associated risks, at the
overall Bank level. Key employees consist of senior executives {officers who are in senior and leadership roles whose appointment is
subject to the no objection by SAMA}, Key Risk Takers (officers who may or may not be in senior roles but are directly or indirectly
engaged in risk taking roles on behalf of the Group) and Key Risk Controllers {officers who may or may nof be in senior roles but are
directly or indirectly engaged in risk controlling roles on behalf of the Group.}

Compensation structure at the Group consists of {a) fixed components viz., base salary, allowances and benefits; as well as (b}
variable components viz., performance bonus and equity based scheme. These components are designed to reflect the level of
responsibility and role of the employee, as well as the business area in which the employee works.

The Group's overall variable compensation pool is derived from the Risk Adjusted Net Income of the Group which takes into account
significant existing and potential risks in order to protect Group's capital adequacy and to mitigate risk of potential future losses. A
process of distributing variable compensation payments over three annual instalments is in place for key employees. The proportion
of deferred payments is determined based on the level and seniority andfor responsibifity of the key employee. A portion of deferred
variable compensation is also awarded in the form of equily based long term bonus scheme. Remunerafion of employees working in
control functions such as Risk Management, Credit, Compliance, Internal Audit, Financial Control, Legal efc. are determined
independently from the business units monitored by them. Further, claw-back arrangements are included to address adverse future
performance. No guaranteed bonuses are allowed. Through these mechanisms, the Group has successfully achieved the palicy
objectives of ensuring that the overall variable compensation takes into account risks associated with financial performance and
adjustments to deferred compensation are considered pursuant to any negative future impact arising out of decisions made during
the current period.

Variable compensation is awarded {o eligible employees in the form of cash, equities or a combination of both. The proportion of
variable compensation to be paid in either form is determined based on the level of responsibility and role of the individual employee,
as well as the business area in which the employee works and commensurate to the risk taking or controlling ability of the employee.

In accordance with regulatory requirements on corporate govemance, the Bank's Board of Directors has established a Nomination
and Remuneration Committee (NRC) which comprises of three non-executive directors and chaired by an independent board
member. The NRC is responsible for the overall architecture and oversight of the compensation system. The committee reviews the
compengation policy from time to ime to ensure its adequacy and effectiveness. Accordingly, the policy was last revised in
December 2017 to reflect the amended organization structure and approval hierarchy, The NRC makes its recommendations to the
Board on the level and composition of remuneration after taking into account the Risk Management Group's input. NRC also
periodically reviews the progress of the compensation policy implementation and ensures that its stated objectives are achieved in
line with the laid out guidelines.

The following is a breakup of the compensation paid to the Group's employees for the years 2017 and 2016:

Number of Fixed Compensation
Employees SAR'000 Variable Compensation Paid - SAR'000
Category 2017 2016 2017 2018 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
Cash Shares Total
Senior executives” 19 21 28,766 30,443 29,882 32,981 3,619 3,190 33,501 36,171
Employees engaged
in risk taking
activities 927 895 328,602 330,704 65,429 67,753 5182 5,285 70,611 73,038
Employees engaged
in control functions 749 756 186,480 188,528 19,051 19,286 2,061 1,970 21112 21,256
Other employees 1,665 1,888 205,755 233,059 5075 4,858 115 214 5,190 5072
Other outsourced
employees 170 195 17,033 19,070 419 600 - - 419 600
Total 3,530 3,755 768,636 801,804 119,856 125,478 10,877 10,659 130,833 136,137

Variable compensation and other

employee related cost accrued or paid

during the year™

941,718

537,255

Total salaries & employee related expenses 1,310,354 1,339,059

* Senior executives are employees whosa appointment requires approval from SAMA,
** Other employee related cosls include insurance premium paid, GOSI contribution, relocation charges, recruitment expenses, training and
development cost, employee refated costs for SBL and certain other non-recurring employee related costs.
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Basic and Diluted Earnings per Share

Basic and diluted earnings per share is calcutated by dividing the net income for the years 2017 and 2016 by 2,000 million shares.
Dividend, Zakat and income tax

a} Dividend

During the current year, a gross interim dividend of SR 1,807 million was approved by the Board of Directors. After deducting Zakat,
this interim dividend resulted in a net payment of SR 0.75 per share to the Saudi shareholders.

In 2016, the total gross dividends amounted to SR 2,434 million of which SR 1,200 was paid as inferim dividend. After deducting
Zakat, this resulted in a total net payment of SR 0.95 per share to Saudi shareholders for 2016 of which SR 0.45 per share was paid
as interim dividend. The proposed final dividend is included within equity until approved by the shareholders’ annual general
assembly.

b} Zakat and Income Tax Liabilities

Zakat and income taxes are the liabilities of the Saudi and foreign shareholders respectively. The zakal liability of Saudi shareholders
is calculated on their share in the equity and the net income. However, the tax liability of foreign shareholders is calculated on their
share in the net income.

Zakat attributable to Saudi shareholders for the year is estimated at SR 592 million {2016: SR 525 million) on & shareholding of
96.44% (2016: 96.44%) which will be deducted from their share of dividend. Zakat liability for the cumrent year has been calculated on
a prudent basis considering dis-allowance of certain long-term investments held by the Bank, as advised by our external advisors
based on the General Authority of Zakat and Income Tax (the “GAZT"} cumment practices. The Bank, however, as a matter of principle,
disagrees with this calculation and intends to contest it with the appropriate authorities should the GAZT disallows long term
investments in the Bank’s Zakat assessments. Income tax liability of the foreign shareholders on their current year's share of income
is estimated at SR 33 million {2016: SR 33 million) on a shareholding of 3.56% (2016: 3.56%). Unpaid income tax liability for the
current year or earlier years, if any, will be deducted from their share of dividend for the year.

¢) Status of Zakat and Income Tax Assessments

The Bank has filed its Zakat and Income Tax returns with the GAZT and paid Zakat and Income Tax for the financial years up to and
including the year 2016. The Bank has received the assessment for the years upto 2009 in which the GAZT raised additional
demand aggregating to SR 1,309 million for the years 2004 to 2009. These additiona! demands are principally on account of
disaflowance of long-term investments and the addition of long-term financing to the Zakat base by the GAZT. The basis for the
additional Zakat liability is being contested by the Bank before the Higher Appeals Committee. The Bank is confident of a favourable
outcome from the appeal process and has therefore not made any provisions in respect of the above.

The assessment of the years 2010 to 2016 are yet to be raised by the GAZT. However, if long-term investments are disaliowed and
long-term financing is added to the Zakat base in line with the assessments finalized by the GAZT for the years referred to above, it
would result in significant additional zakat exposure to the Bank which remains an industry wide issue and disclosure of which might
affect the Bank’s position in this matter.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the statements of consolidated cash flows comprise the foliowing:

2047 2016
SAR ‘000 SAR ‘000
Cash and balances with Central Banks excluding statutory deposit (note 3) 15,952,887 27,784,295
Due from banks and other financial institutions 5,020,361 8,877,752
Total 20,973,248 36,662,047

Operating segments
The Group is organized into the following main operating segments:

Consumer banking - comprises individual customer time deposits, current, call and savings accounts, as well as credit cards, retaii
investment products, individual and consumer loans.

Corporate banking - comprises corporate time deposits, current and call accounts, overdrafts, loans and other credit facilities as
well the Group’s customer derivative portfolios and its corporate advisory business.
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Treasury ~ principally manages money market, foreign exchange, commission rate trading and derivatives for corporate and
institutional customers as well as for the Group's own account. It is also responsible for funding the Group's operations, maintaining
liquidity and managing the Group’s investment portfolio and statement of financial position.

Investment banking — engaged in investment management services and asset management activities related to dealing, managing,
arranging, advising and custody businesses. The investment barking business is housed under a separate legal entity Samba
Capital and Investment Management Company.

The Group's primary business is conducted in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia with three overseas branches and three overseas
subsidiaries. However, the results of the overseas operations are not material to the Group's overall consofidated financial
statements.

On June 8, 2016, the Board of Directors of the Group has decided to close the operations of UK branch as its operations are no
longer consistent with the business strategy of the Group. The management believes that the financial impact of this decision will not
be material to the overall operations of the Group.

Transactions between the business segments are on normal commercial terms. Funds are ordinarily reallocated between segments,
resulting in funding cost transfers. Special commission charged for these funds is based on market based inter-bank rates. There are
no ather material items of income or expense or other internal revenues between the operating segments.

a) The Group's total assets and liabilities as at December 31, 2017 and 2016, together with special commission income net, total
operating income, total operating expenses, provision for credit losses, net income, capital expenditure and depreciation
expenses for the years then ended, by operating segment, are as follows:

Consu.mer Corpo.rate Treasury Investn-nent Total
2017 {SAR’000) barking banking banking
Total assets 33,445,962 100,998,517 92,995,571 171,029 227,611,079
Total liabilities 92,159,792 81,293,041 9,356,841 119,253 182,928,927
Special commission income, net 2,128,091 2,258,283 1,317,860 27,991 5,732,225
Total operating income 2,772,732 2,998,261 1,667,113 453,460 7,891,566
Total operating expenses, of which: 1,763,693 785,330 131,131 187,122 2,867,276
- Depreciation 48,590 66,942 1,033 7,000 123,565
- Provision for credit losses 138,746 148,420 - - 287,166
Net income 1,008,039 2,212,931 1,535,982 266,338 5,024,290
Capital expenditure 112,286 107,237 28,608 5,274 253,405
2016 (SAR'000 C:::;';‘ge r Cﬁiﬁﬁ{:ée Treasury '"S':ﬁEZ"‘ Total
Total assets 35,981,789 105,514,466 89,902,651 89,681 231,488,587
Total liabilities 98,866,851 77,580,201 12,395,017 101,750 188,943,819
Special commission income, net 2,129 217 1,974,385 1,261,290 17,392 5,382,284
Total operating income 2,789,400 2,776,001 1,606,184 588,872 7,760,457
Totaf operating expenses, of which: 1,774,785 667,194 129,693 183,122 2,754,794
- Depreciation 48,161 62,319 823 10,038 121,341
- Provision for credit losses 149,396 50,750 - - 200,146
Net income 1,014,615 2,108,807 1,476,491 405,750 5,005,663
Capital expenditure 114,154 247 998 6,791 1,923 370,866
b} The Group's credit exposure by operating segment is as follows:

Investment

2017 (SAR'000) Consumer Corporate Treasury Banking Total
Balance sheet risk assets 26,191,252 91,431,143 74,943,911 62,313 192,628,619
Commitments and contingencies 277,257 26,216,832 760,560 - 27,254,649
Derivatives 50,773 2,414,578 10,316,316 - 12,781,667
2016 {SAR’000}
Balance sheet risk assels 28,272,467 96,945,718 58,298,918 16,145 183,533,248
Commitments and contingencies 371,405 27,202,007 300,428 - 27,873,840

Derivatives 24,541 1,052,742 4,509,934 - 5,587,217
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Balance sheet risk assets comprise of the carrying value of the assets at the reporting date, excluding cash and balances with central
banks, derivatives, property and equipment and other assets. Credit exposures relating to commitments, contingencies and
derivatives are stated at their credit equivalent amounts as prescribed by central banks.

28. Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that a customer will fail to discharge its financiat obligation to the Group and will cause the Group to incur a
financial loss. The Group seeks to manage its credit risk exposure by ensuring that its customers meet the minimum credit standards
defined by the Group's management and through diversification of lending activities to ensure that there is no undue concentration of
risks with individuals, or within groups of customers in specific focations or businesses. The Group continually assesses and monitors
credit exposures to ensure timely identification of potential problem credits.

in addition to monitoring credit limits, the Group manages the credit exposure relating to its trading activities by entering into master
netting agreements and collateral arrangements with counterparties in appropriate circumstances, and by fimiting the duration of
exposure. In certain cases the Group may also close out transactions and settle on a net present value basis.

Concentrations of credit risk arise when a number of counterparties are engaged in simitar business activities, or activities in the
same geographic region, or have similar economic features that would cause their ability to meet contractual obligations to be
similarly affected by changes in economic, political or other conditions. Concentrations of credit risk indicate the relative sensilivity of
the Group's performance o developments affecting a particutar industry or geographical location. The Group kmits the impact of
concenfration risk in exposure by seffing progressively lower limits for longer tenors and taking security, where considered
appropriate, to mitigate such risks. Debt instruments included in the Group's invesiment portfolio are mainly sovereign risk
instruments. Analysis of investments by counterparty and the composition of loans and advances is provided in notes 5 and 6 to the
consolidated financial statements, respectively. The nature and extent of credit risk relating to derivative instruments and
commitments and contingencies is provided in notes 9 and 17, respectively. The Group classifies its exposure into ten risk categories
that are compatible with internationally recognized ratings. Of these, seven calegories are for performing and three for non-
performing. Each individual borrower is rated based on an internally developed debt rating model that evaluates risk based on
financial as well as qualitative inputs. The risk rating categories drive the due diligence and approval process, and these ratings are
reviewed at least annually or sooner if any adverse signs are visible. These categories also form the basis for managing credit
concentrations and identifying problem credits.

Exposures falling below a certain classification threshold are considered o be impaired, and appropriate specific provisions are made
against these loans by comparing the present value of expected future cash flows for each such exposure with its carrying amount on
the basis of criteria prescribed by IAS 39. Impairment and uncoflectible are also measured and recognized on a portfolio basis for a
group of similar credit exposure that are not individually identified as impaired.

28.1 Maximum exposure to credit risk without taking into account any collateral and other credit enhancements is as follows:

2017 2016
SAR000 SAR'000

ASSETS

Due from banks and other financial institutions 11,031,480 9,599,656
nvestments, net 60,292,258 48,027,761
Loans and advances, net 117,684,729 125,234,330
Other assets exposed to credit risk 158,871 160,776
Total 189,167,338 183,022,523
Contingent fiabilities and commitments 27,254,649 27,873,840
Derivatives 12,781,667 5,587,217
Totat 229,203,654 216,483,580
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29. Geographical concentration

a) The distribution by geographical region for major categories of assefs, liabilities, commitments and contingencies and credit

exposure are as follows:

2017 (SAR'000) Other GCC
Kingdomof & Middle North Latin South Other
Saudi Arabia East Europe America  America  East Asia  countries Total
Assets
Cash and balances
with central banks 24,479,448 583,953 - - - 131,665 25,195,066
Due from banks and
other financial
institutions 3,847,983 3,490,562 776,758 2,585,031 - 5,573 325,572 11,031,480
Investments, net 44,131,875 3236622 6,323,621 7,367 469 63,025 162,326 2637472 63,912,410
Derivatives 5,968,334 151,970 - 350,702 - - 23,702 6,514,708
Loans and advances,
net 108,685,806 7,058,821 426,858 102 - - 1,513,143 117,684,729
Total 187,133,445 14,521,928 7,527,238 10,303,304 63,025 289,564 4,499,889 224,338,393
Liabifities
Due to banks and other
financiat institutions 1,095,598 535856 3,076,489 144,488 - 4,630 1,694,402 6,551,464
Customer deposits 164,723,592 1,063,264 38,635 340,800 520 18,611 1,802,149 167,987,571
Derivatives 3,945790 5872 941 - - - 23,695 3,976,298
Total 169,764,981 1,604,992 3,116,065 485,288 520 23,241 3,520,246 178,515,333
Credit exposure
(stated at credit
equivalents)
Commitments and
contingencies 20,737457 2943704 1,059,114 425,251 18,426 1461012 609,685 27,254,649
Derivatives 4,982,898 185,589 6,803,541 800,036 - - 9,603 12,781,667
Total 25,720,355 3,429,293 7,862,655  1,225287 18,426 1,461,012 £19,288 40,036,316
2016 (SAR'000) Other GCC
Kingdomof & Middle North Latin South Other
Saudi Arabia East Europe America America  EastAsia  countries Total
Agsets
Cash and balances
with central banks 36,842 978 331,439 1,292 - 168,805 - 37,344,514
Due from banks and
other financial
institutions 3471636 2165529 1,650,370 1,963,663 - 10,546 337,912 9,599,656
Investments, net 34,811,912 1,113,293 3,860,987 7,711,247 59,300 2,361,746 1474,325 51,392,810
Derivatives 4,144,460 5,064 248 286,624 - - 5,665 4,442,059
Loans and advances,
net 117,892,220 5,203,930 769,680 45,024 - - 1,323,476 125,234,330
Total 197,163,206 8,819,255 6,282,575 10,006,558 59,300 2,541,007 3,141,378 228,013,369
Liabifities
Due to banks and other
financial institutions 1,856,504  5647,036 1,754,250 125,819 . 787 1,496,382 10,880,778
Customer deposits 168,599,369 1,531,193 61,587 212,192 - 722 1,670,653 172,075,716
Derivatives 1,226,954 2,598 20 251,507 - - 4,550 1,485,629
Total 171,682,827 7,180,827 1,815,857 589,518 » 1,509 3,171,585 184,442,123
Credit exposure
(stated at credit
equivalents)
Commitments and
contingencies 21,878,648  2,853474 912,302 388,099 5432 1,127,883 708,002 27,873,840
Derivatives 2,258,980 154,652 2,760,046 403,716 - - 9,823 5,587,217
Total 24137,628 3,008,126 3,672,348 791,815 5432 1,127,883 717,825 33,461,057
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Credit exposures are stated at their credit equivalent amounts as prescribed by SAMA.

b) The distribution by geographical concentration of non-performing loans and advances and provision for credit losses are as follows:

Non-performing loans and

{SAR ‘000) advances Provision for credit losses
2017 2016 2017 2016
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia 926,914 981,378 1,834,284 1,761,998
Other GCC and Middie East 121,219 10,227 61,662 30,989
Europe - - - -
Cther countries 79,182 84,586 78,675 78,688
Total 1,127,315 1,076,191 1,974,621 1,871,675

30. Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of the financial instruments will fluctuate due to changes in market

variables such as special commission rates, foreign exchange rates, and equity prices. The Group classifies exposures to market risk
into either trading or non-trading / banking-book.

a) Market Risk -Trading Book

The Group has set limits for the acceptable level of risks in managing the trading book. In order to manage the market risk in trading
book, the Group periodically applies a Value at Risk {VAR) methodology to assess the market risk positions held and also to estimate
the potential economic loss based on a set of assumptions and changes in market conditions.

A VAR methodology estimates the potential negative change in market value of a portfolio at a given confidence level and over a
specified time horizon, The Group uses simulation models to assess the possible changes in the market value of the frading book
based on hisforical data. VAR models are usually designed to measure the market risk in a normal market environment and therefore

the use of VAR has limitations because it is based on historical correlations and volatilities in market prices and assumes that the

future movements will follow a statistical normal distribution,

The VAR that the Group measures is an estimate, using a confidence level of 99% of the potential loss that is not expected to be
exceeded if the current market posilions were to be held unchanged for one day. The use of 99% confidence level depicts that within
a one-day horizon, losses exceeding VAR figure shoukd occur, on average, not more than once every hundred days.

The VAR represents the risk of portfolios at the close of a business day, and it does not account for any losses that may occur
beyond the defined confidence interval. The actual trading resufts however, may differ from the VAR calculations and, in particular,
the calculation does not provide a meaningful indication of profits and losses in stressed market conditions. To overcome the VAR

limitations mentioned above, the Group also carries out stress tests of its portfolio to simulate conditions outside normal confidence

intervals. The potential losses occurring under stress test conditions are reported regularly to the Group's Asset and Liability
Committee (ALCO) for its review.

The Group's VAR related information for the year ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 is as shown befow.

Foreign Special
exchange commission

2017 (SAR “000) risk risk Total
VAR as at December 31 9,756 2499 12,255
Average VAR for the year 7.851 11,220 19,071
2016 {SAR ‘000)

VAR as at December 31 11,060 6,396 17,456
Average VAR for the year 6,731 23,362 30,083

b} Market Risk - Non-Trading or Banking Book

Market risk on non-trading or banking book positions mainly arises from the special commission rate, foreign currency exposures and
equity price changes.

i) Special Commission Rate Risk

Special commission rate risk arises from the possibility that the changes in special commission rates will affect either the fair values
or the future cash flows of the financial instruments. The Group has established special commission rate gap limits for stipulated

periods. The Group monitors daily positions and uses hedging strategies to ensure maintenance of positions within the established
gap limits.
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The following table depicts the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in special commission rates, with other variables held
constant, on the Group's statements of consolidated income or equity. The sensitivity of the income is the effect of the assumed
changes in special commission rates on the net special commission income for one year, based on non-trading financial assets and
financial liabilities held as at December 31, including the effect of hedging instruments. The senstivity of equity is calcutated by
revaluing the fixed rate available for sale financial assets, including the effect of any associated hedges as at December 31, for the
effect of assumed changes in special commission rates. The sensitivity of equity is analyzed by maturity of the asset or swap.

All the banking book exposures are monitored and analyzed in currency concentrations and relevant sensitivities are presented

below:
Increase/  Sensitivity Sensitivity of equity
decrease  of special
inbasis commission 6 months 6to 12 1-5 Total 2017
Currency point income or less months years OverSyears  (SAR'000)
SAR +1bps (21,455) {1.461) {1,012 {6,486) (3,123 {12,082)
-1 bps 21,455 1,461 1,012 6,486 3,123 12,082
US Dollar +1 bps (2,391) (364) (277) (1,071) {587) {2,299)
-1Dbps 2,391 364 277 1,071 587 2,299
Euro +1 bps 127 16 54 61 . 13
-1 bps {127} {16) (54) (61) - {131)
Increase/  Sensitivity Sensitivity of equity
decrease  of special
inbasis  commission 6 months 6to12 1-5 Total 2016
Currency point income or less months years Over5years  {SAR'000)
SAR +1 bps (18,316) {1,025} (660) {4,250) (2,1286) {8,061)
-1 bps 18,316 1,025 660 4,250 2,126 8,061
US Dollar +1 bps {1,585) (361) (301 (1,468) {803) (2,933)
-1 bps 1,585 361 3N 1,468 803 2,933
Euro +1 bps 198 57 116 28 - 201
-1bps {198) (57} (1186) (28) - {201)
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The Group is exposed to various risks associated with the effect of fluctuations in the prevailing Jevels of market commission rates on its
financial position and cash flows. The table befow summarizes the Group's exposure to commission rate risks. Included in the table are
the Group’s assets and liabilities at carrying amounts, categorized by the earlier of contractual re-pricing or maturity dates. The Group is
exposed to special commission rate risk as a result of mismatches or gaps in the amounts of assets and liabilities and off-balance sheet
instruments that mature or re-price in a given period. The Group manages this risk by matching the re-pricing of assets and liabilities
through risk management sirategies.

2017 (SAR ‘000) Non-
Within 3 312 15 Over 5 commission
months months years years hearing Total
Assets
Cash and balances with central
banks 14,073,413 - - - 11,121,653 25,195,066
Due from banks and other
financial institutions 4,153,613 3,647,500 - - 3,230,367 11,031,480
Investments, net 28,146,697 3,632,208 12,520,232 14,094,180 5,519,093 63,912,410
Derivatives 6,514,708 - - - - 6,514,708
Loans and advances, net 66,507,562 30,755,528 12918171 7,501,855 1,613 117,684,729
Property and equipment, net - - - - 2,638,884 2,638,884
Other assets - - - - 633,802 633,802
Total Assets 119,395,993 38,035,236 25,438,403 21,596,035 23,145,412 227,611,079
Liabilities and equity
Due to banks and other financiat
institutions 5,920,354 34,408 2,990 13,047 580,665 6,551,464
Customer deposils 34,711,767 18,560,516 705,726 8,130,619 105,878,943 167,987,571
Derivatives 3,976,298 - - - - 3,976,298
Cther kabilities - - - - 4,413,504 4,413,594
Total equity - - - - 44,682,152 44,682,152
Total liabilities and equity 44,608,419 18,594,924 708,716 8,143,666 155,555,354 227,611,079
On balange sheet gap 74,787 574 19,440,312 24,729,687 13,452,369 {132,409,942)
Off balance sheet gap {5,326,950) (855,938} 6,182,888
Total commission rate
sensitivity gap 69,460,624 18,584,374 30,912,575 13,452,369 (132,409,942)
Cumulative commission rate
sensitivity gap 89,460,624 88,044,998 118,957,573 132,409,942
2016 {SAR ‘000) Non-
Within 3 312 -5 Over5 commission
months months years years bearing Total
Assgets
Cash and balances with central
banks 25,983,376 - - - 11,361,138 37,344,514
Due from banks and other
financial institutions 4,371,374 675,000 - - 4,553,282 9,599,656
Investments, net 20,756,525 2,445,235 10,538,666 12,438,560 5,213,824 51,392,810
Derivatives 4,442 059 - - - - 4,442,059
Loans and advances, net 66,850,844 35,271,164 14,534,891 8,567,376 10,055 125,234,330
Properly and equipment, net - . - - 2,510,180 2,510,180
Other assels - - - - 965,038 965,038
Totat Assets 122,404,178 38,391,399 25,073,557 21,005,936 24,613,517 231,488,587
Liabilities and equity
Due to hanks and other financial
institutions 8,517,589 1,903,241 - - 459,948 10,880,778
Customer deposits 35,108,229 24,588,991 719,670 - 111,658,826 172,075,716
Derivatives 1,485,629 - - - - 1,485,629
Other liabilities - - - - 4,501,696 4,501,696
Total aquity - - - - 42 544,768 42,544,768
Total liabilities and equity 45,111,447 26,492,232 719,670 - 159,165,238 231,488,587
On balance sheet gap 77,292,731 11,899,167 24,353,887 21,005,936 (134,551,721)
Off balance sheet gap 6,917,487 (7,000,482} 82,895 - -
Total commission rate
sensitivity gap 84,210,218 4,898,685 24,436,882 21,005,936 (134,551,7121)
Cumulative commission rate
sensitivity gap 84,210,218 89,108,903 113,545,785 134,551,721
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The off balance sheet gap represents the net notional amounts of off-balance sheet financial instruments, which are used to manage the
commission rate risk.

3.

i) Currency risk

Currency risk represents the risk of change in the value of financial instruments due to changes in foreign exchange rates. The Group
manages exposure to the effects of fluctuations in prevailing foreign currency exchange rates on its financial position and cash flows.
Management sets limits on the level of exposure by currency and in total for both overnight and intra-day positions and hedging
strategies, which are monitored daily. At the end of the year, the Group had the following significant net currency exposures:

2017 2016
(SAR’000) {SAR’000)
Long/(Short} Long/(Short)
United States Doltar 3,591,871 1,344,355
United Arab Emirates Dirham 298,887 256,549
United Kingdom Pound Sterling (64,337} (62,746)
Pakistan Rupee 821,009 844,647
Euro (120,562} {108,488)

The table below shows the currencies to which the Group has a significant exposure as at December 31, 2017 and 2016 on its non-
trading monetary assets and liabilities and forecasted cash flows. The analysis calculates the effect of reasonable possible
movement of the currency rate against SAR, with all other variables held constant, on the statements of consolidated income (due to
the fair value of the currency sensitive non-trading monetary assets and liabilities) and equity {due to change in fair value of currency
swaps and forward foreign exchange contracts used as cash flow hedges). A positive effect shows a potential increase in statements
of consolidated income or equity; whereas a negative effect shows a potential net reduction in statements of consolidated income or
equity.

2017 (SAR'000) 2016 {SAR'000)
Change
Changein Effecton in Effect on
currency net Effect on currency net Effect on
Currency exposures rate income equity rate income equity
US Dollar 1% 136,575 {700) 1% 64,340 {663)
Euro 1% (2,744) 349 1% 3,680 656

jily Equity Price Risk

Equity price risk refers to the risk of decrease in fair values of equities in the Group’s non-trading investment portfolio as a result of
reasonable possible changes in levels of equity indices and the value of individual stocks. Assuming alt other variables are held
constant, a 1% increase or decrease in the value of Group’s available for sale quoted equity investments at December 31, 2017
would have a corresponding increase or decrease in equity by SR 36.2 million (2016: SR 33.6 million).

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will be unable fo meet its net funding requirements. Liquidity risk can be caused by market
disruptions or credit downgrades, which may cause certain sources of funding to be less readily available. To mitigate this risk,
management has diversified funding sources and manages its assets with liquidity in mind, maintaining an appropriate balance of
cash, cash equivalents and readily marketable securities.

In accordance with Banking Control Law and the regulations issued by SAMA, the Bank maintains a statutory deposit with SAMA
equal to 7% of total demand deposits and 4% of savings and time depesits (2016: 7% and 4% respectively).

In addition to the statutory deposit, the Bank also maintains liquid reserves of no less than 20% (2016: 20%) of its deposit liabifities, in
the form of cash, gold, Saudi Government securities or assets that can be converted into cash within a period not exceeding 30 days.

The Bank has the ability to raise additional funds through repo facHlities with SAMA against Saudi Govemment securities up to 100%
{2016: 100%) of the nominal value of securities held.

i}  Maturity profile of Group’s assets, Habilities and equity
The management regularly monitors the maturity profite to ensure that adequate liquidity is maintained. The tables below summarize

the maturity profile of the Group’s assets, liabilities and equity based on the contractual maturities as at the reporting date. For
presentation purposes, the demand, saving and other deposits amounting to SAR 113,103 miflion (2016: SAR 118,668 million) with
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no contractual maturity are included under “No fixed maturity” category o correctly depict the maturity profile of such deposit

liabilities.
Within 3 312 15 Over5 No fixed

2017 (SAR ‘000) months months years years maturity Total
Assets
Cash and balances with central

banks 14,073,413 - - - 11,121,653 25,195,066
Due from banks and other

financial institutions 4,153,613 3,647,500 - - 3,230,367 11,031,480
Investments, net 4,232,368 1,112,007 17,900,875 35,148,067 5,519,093 63,912,410
Derivatives 1,236,145 1,025,097 2,995,146 1,258,320 - 6,514,708
Loans and advances, net 26,422,726 33,678,917 36,709,257 20,174,207 499,622 417,684,729
Property and equipment, net - - - - 2,638,884 2,638,884
Other assels - - - - 633,802 633,802
Total Assets 50,118,265 39,663,521 57,605,278 56,580,594 23,643,421 227,611,079
Liabilities and Equity
Due to banks and other financial

institutions 5,920,354 34,408 2,990 13,047 580,665 6,551,464
Customer deposits 35,617,873 18,560,516 705,726 - 113,103,456 167,987,571
Derivatives 720,541 638,566 1,877,999 739,192 - 3,976,298
Other liabilities - - - . 4,413,594 4,413,594
Totat equity - - - - 44,682,152 44,682,152
Total Liabilities and Equity 42,258,768 19,233,430 2,586,715 752,239 162,779,867 227,611,079

Within 3 312 1-5 Over§ No fixed

2016 (SAR ‘000) months monthg years years maturity Total
Assets
Cash and balances with centrat

banks 25,983,376 - - - $1,361,138 37,344,514
Due from banks and other

financial instiutions 4,371,374 675,000 - - 4,553,262 9,599,656
Investments, net 2,218,325 1,797,998 12,634,760 29,526,903 5,213,824 51,392,810
Derivatives 145,658 573,100 2,488,852 1,234,449 - 4,442,059
Loans and advances, net 32,544,174 31,589,512 39,118,797 21,825,579 156,268 125,234,330
Property and equipment, net - - - - 2,510,180 2,510,180
Other assefs - - - - 965,038 965,038
Total Assets 65,263,907 34,635,610 54,242 409 52,586,931 24,759,730 231,488,587
Liabilities and Equity
Due to banks and other financiat

institutions 8,517,589 1,903,241 - - 459,948 10,880,778
Customer deposits 28,732,362 23,955,554 719,670 - 118,666,130 172,075,716
Derivatives 48,185 179,480 809,022 448,942 - 1,485,629
Other liabilities - - - - 4,501,696 4,501,696
Totat equity - - - - 42 544 768 42,544,768
Total Liabilities and Equity 37,298,136 26,038,275 1,528,692 448,942 166,174,542 231,488,587
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iiy Analysis of undiscounted financial liabilities by remaining contractual maturities

The table below summarizes the maturity profile of Group's financial liabilities at December 31 based on contractual undiscounted
repayment cbligations. The totals in this table do not match with the statements of consolidated financial position as special
commission payments with contractual maturities are included in the table on an undiscounted basis. The contractual maturities of
financial liabifities have been determined on the basis of the remaining period at the reporting date to the contractual maturity date.
The table below does not reflect the expected cash flows indicated by the deposit retention history of the Group. Contractual maturity
of the financial guarantees is shown under note 17{c}.

Within 3 1-5
2017 {SAR ‘000) months 3-12 months Years Over 5 years On demand Total
Due to banks and other financial
institutions 5,823,873 34,929 3328 15,639 580,665 6,558,434
Customer deposils 35,692,035 18,767,371 724,188 - 113,103,456 168,287,050
Derivatives 771,689 693,508 2,043,825 1,018,427 - 4,533,449
Other liabilities - - - - 4,413,594 4,413,594
Total 42,387,597 19,495,808 2,771,341 1,034,066 148,097,715 183,792,527
Within 3 1-5
2016 (SAR *000) months 312 months Years Over 3 years On demand Total
Due 1o banks and other financial
institutions 8,524,969 1,909,603 - - 459,948 10,894,520
Customer deposits 28,794,996 24,310,442 750,806 - 118,668,130 172,524,374
Derivatives 60,189 224618 1,056,441 754,496 - 2,095,744
Other liabilities - - - - 4,501,696 4,501,696
Total 37,380,154 26,444,663 1,807,247 754,496 123,629,774 190,016,334

Fair values of financial instruments

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
parficipants at the measurement date. The Group uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of
financial instruments:

Level 1 - Quoted prices in active markets for the same instrument {i.e. without modification or repacking);

Level 2 - Quoted prices in active markets for similar assets and labilities or other valuation technigues for which
all significant inputs are based on observable market data; and

Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which any significant input is not based on observable market data.

The fair values of the financial assets, financial fiabilities and the derivative financial instruments classified under the appropriate
valuation hierarchy, are given below:

2017 (SAR ‘000) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial Assets:

Investments held at FVIS 271,273 2,005,798 - 2,277,074
Investments available for sale 12,435,528 11,314,953 636,105 24,386,586
Investments held to maturity 3,081,404 179,980 - 3,261,384
Other investments held at amortized cost - 33,168,940 469,253 33,638,193
Derivative assets 344 6,514,364 - 6,514,708
Loans and advances, net - 118,030,004 - 118,030,004
Total 15,788,549 171,214039 1,105,358 188,107,946
Financial Liabilities:

Financial liabilities designated at FViS - 559,543 - 559,543
Derivative liabilities - 3,976,298 - 3,976,298
Total - 4,535,841 - 4 535,841
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2016 (SAR 000) Level 1 Leve| 2 Level 3 Total
Financial Assets:

Investments held at FVIS 836,734 1,964,519 - 2,801,253
Investments avaifable for sale 11,940,048 7,137,993 667,073 19,745,114
Investments held to maturity 2,958,548 173,339 - 3,131,887
Other investments held at amortized cost - 25,437,756 163,215 25,600,971
Derivative assets 1,487 4,440,572 - 4,442,059
Loans and advances, net - 125,484,447 - 125,484,447
Total 15,736,817 164,638,626 830,288 181,205,731
Financial Liabilities:

Financiai iabilities designated at FVIS - 444,203 - 444,203
Derivative liabilities 719 1,484,910 - 1,485,629
Total 719 1,929,113 - 1,929,832

During the year, there has been no transfer within levels of the fair value hierarchy. The following table shows a reconciliation from
the beginning bafances to the ending balances for the fair value measurements in Leve! 3 of the fair value hierarchy in respect of
financial assets held at FVIS and available for sale:

2017 2016

SAR ‘000 SAR ‘000
Balance at the beginning of the year 667,073 804,277
Total realized and unrealized losses in statement of consolidated income and statement
of consolidated comprehensive income {45,505) {58,221)
Purchases 129,287 183,227
Settlements {114,750} (262,210)
Balance at the end of the year 636,105 667,073

The fair values of other on-balance sheet financial instruments, except for other investments held at amortized cost and held-to-
malurity investments which are carried at amortized cost, are not significanty different from the carrying values included in the
consolidated financial statements. The Group's portfolio of loans and advances to customers is well diversified by industry. More than
three quarters of the portfolio reprices within less than a year and accordingly the fair value of this portfolic approximates the carrying
value, subject to any significant movement in credit spreads. The fair value of the remaining portfolio is not significantly different from
its carrying values. The fair values of special commission bearing customers’ deposits carried at amortised cost, due from and due to
banks and other financial institutions which are carried at amortized cost, are not significantly different from the carrying values
included in the consolidated financial statements, since the current market special commission rates for similar financial instruments
are not significantly different from the contracted rates, and for the short duration of these instruments,

The esfimated fair values of held-to-maturity investments and other investments held at amortized cost are based on quoted market
prices when available or pricing models when used in the case of certain fixed rate bonds respectively. The fair values of these
investments are also disclosed in note 5{c).

The value obtained from the relevant valuation mode! may differ, with the transaction price of a financial instrument. The difference
between the transaction price and the model value is commonly referred to as ‘day-one profit or loss'. It is either amortized over the
life of the transaction, deferred until the instrument's fair value can be determined using market observable data, or realized through
disposal. Subsequent changes in fair value are recognized immediately in the statements of consolidated income without reversal of
deferred day-one profits or losses.

The valuation of each publicly traded investment is based upon the closing market price of that stock as of the valuation date, less a
discount if the security is restricted.

Investments classified as Level 2 are fair valued using discounted cash flow techniques that generally use observable market data
inputs for yield curves, credit spreads and reported net asset values of the funds. Derivatives classified as Level 2 are fair-valued
using the Bank's proprietary valuation models that are based on discounted cash flow techniques. The data inputs to these models
are based on observable market parameters in which they are traded and are sourced from independent brokers,

Fair values of private equity investments classified in Level 3 are determined based on the investees' latest reported net assets
values as at the reporting date. The movement in Level 3 financial instruments during the year relates to fair value movement only.
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Related party transactions

In the ordinary course of its activities, the Bank transacts business with related parties. The relaled party transactions are governed
by limits set by the Banking Control Law and regufations issued by Central Banks. The year-end balances resulting from such
transactions included in the consolidated financial statements are as follows:

2017 2016
SAR ‘000 SAR ‘000

Directors, other major shareholders, key management personnel and

their affiliates:

Loans and advances 113,503 486,573

Customer deposits 19,302,051 8,998,300

Commitments and contingencies 12,316 14,335
Mutual funds:

Customer deposits 329,152 1,256,152

Other major shareholders represent shareholdings of more than 5% of the Bank’s issued and paid up share capital, as listed on
Tadawul, Income and expenses pertaining to transactions with related parties included in the consolidated financial statements are
as follows:

2017 2016
SAR ‘000 SAR ‘000
Special commission income 10,466 10,657
Special commission expense 297,317 186,566
Fee and commission income, net 155,674 212,773
Directors’ remuneration 5,109 4,260

The total amount of compensation paid to key management personnel during the year is as follows:

2017 2016
SAR ‘000 SAR ‘000
Short-term employee benefits 59,111 56,806
Post-employment, termination and share-based payments 6,940 6,804

Key management personnel are those persons, including the Chief Executive Officer, having authority and responsibility for planning,
directing, and controlling the activities of the Bank, directly or indirectly.

Capital Adequacy

The Group monitors the adequacy of its capital using the methodology and ratios established by the Basel Committee on Banking
Supervision and as adopted by SAMA with a view to maintain a sound capital base to suppor its business development and meet
reguiatory capital requirement as defined by SAMA. These ratios measure capital adequacy by comparing the Group's eligible capital
with its statements of financial position assets, commitments and contingencies, notional amount of derivatives at a weighted amount
to reflect their relative credit risk, market risk and operational risk. During the year, the Group has fully complied with such regulatory
capital requirements.

The management reviews on a periodical basis capital base and level of risk weighted assets to ensure that capital is adequate for
risks inherent in i current business acfivities and future growth plans. In making such assessment, the management also considers
the Group’s business plan along with economic condifions which directly and indirectly affect the business environment, The
overseas subsidiary manages ils own capital as prescribed by local regulatory requirements.

SAMA has issued the framework and guidance regarding implementation of the capital reforms under Basel Il and the related
disclosures which are effective from January 1, 2013. Accordingly, calculated under the Basel W framework, the Group's
consolidated Risk Weighted Assets {RWA), total capital and related rafios on a consolidated group basis and on a standalone basis
for its significant banking subsidiary calculated for the credit, operational and market risks, at December 31 are as follows:
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2017 2016
SR'000 SR’000

Samba Financial Group (consolidated)

Credit risk RWA 187,944,475 171,634,477

Operational risk RWA 13,303,620 13,122,515

Market risk RWA 15,165,875 11,325,363
Total RWA 216,413,970 196,082,355

Tier | capital 44,622,638 42,810,511

Tier Il capital 1,126,685 1,223,471
Total tier | & Il capital 45,749,323 44,033,982
Capital adequacy ratio %

Tier | ratio 20.6% 21.8%

Tier I + |l ratio 21.1% 22.5%
Capital adequacy ratios for Samba Bank Limited, Pakistan are as follows:

Tier | ratio 19.16% 241%

Tier I + 1 rafio 19.50% 25.1%

Tier | capital comprises the share capital, statutory, general and other reserves, qualifying non-controfiing interest and retained
earnings less any intangible assets of the Bank as at the year-end. Tier Il capital comprises of a prescribed amount of eligible
provisions.

Investment management services

The investment management services are provided by Samba Capital and Investment Management Company, a 100% owned
subsidiary of the Bank. The assets under management outstanding at end of the year including mutual funds and discretionary
portfolios amounted to SAR 31,708 million (2016: SAR 28,929 million). This includes funds managed under Shariah-approved
portfolios amounting to SAR 14,766 million {2016: SAR 12,586 million).

Assets held in trust or in a fiduciary capacity are not freated as assets of the Bank or that of its subsidiary and, accordingly, are not
included in the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

Equity-based payments

The Bank has following equity-based long term benus plans outstanding at the end of the year. Significant features of these plans are
as follows:

Number of outstanding plans 5s )

Grant date Between June 2013 and April 2017 _
 Maturity date "Between June 2018 and Aprl 2022

Number of shares granted on the grant date, adjusted for bonus share issue 1,716,185

Benchmark price per share af grant date, adjusied for bonus shareissue | Between SAR 25.8 and 20.94

Vestingperiod 5 years

Vesting conditions Participating employees to remain in service

Method of seflement Equity

Valuation model Discounted Cash Flow

Fair value per share on grant date adjusted for bonus share issue i Between SAR 17.5 and 22.5

The fair value of shares granted during the year was SAR 7.4 miffion (2016: SAR 6.9 million). The inputs used to calculate fair value
of the shares granted during the year were the market price at the grant date, life of the plan, expected dividends and annual rigk free
rate of return.

The shares are granted only under a service condition with no market condition associated with them. The total amount of expense

recognized in these consolidated financial statements in respect of the above equity-based payment plans for the year 2017 is
SAR 4.7 million (2016: SAR 4.0 million).
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37.  Prior period restatements and reclassifications

a.  The change in the accounting policy for Zakat and income tax (as explained in note 2.29) has the following impacts on the line
items of statements of consolidated financial position and consolidated changes in equity:

As at December 31, 2015 _ m
Balance as Effect of Balance as
previously reported restatement restated
Account ,‘ SR'000 | sR000 SR000 |
Other iabiities - 4,265,449 236,247 4501696 |
_Proposed dividends o 1,234,000 (236,247) 997,753 |
T ;
Balance as Effect of Balance as
previously reported restatement restated
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION SR'000 SR'000 SR'000
ASSETS
 Cash and balances with central banks 15,209,930 - 15,299,930
Due from banks and other financial institutions B 14415818 - 14415818
Investments, net " 69,952,186 - 69,952,186
Derivatives 2,606,132 - 2806132
Loans and advances, net 130,001,230 - 130,001,230
Property and equipment, net 2,267,212 - 2,267,212
Otherassets 700,171 - 700,171
Total Assets - ] 235,242,679 -1 2524267
LIABILITIESANDEQUITY | T
Due to banks and other financial institutions 19,197,230 - 19,167,230
 Customer deposits 171,804,534 - 171,804,534
Derivatives 609,901 - 609,901
Other iabilities 3,271,157 239,110 3,510,267
Total liabilities 194,882,822 239,110 195,121,932
EQUITY
Equity attributable to equity hoiders of the Bank ”
Share capital 20,000,000 - 20,000,000
*Statutory reserve 13,303,555 - 13,303,565
General resefve 130,000 - 130,000
Other reserves 205,507 - 205,507
Retained eamings 6,523,875 - 6,523,875
 Proposed dividend 1134000 | (239,110) 894,890
Treasury stocks {1,046,336) - {1,046,336) 7
Total equity attributable to equity holders of the Bank | 40250801 | (209,110) | 40,011.491
Non-controlling interest i | 109,256 - 109,256
Total equity : 40,359,857 {239,110) 40,120,747
Total liabilities and equity - 1 235,242,679 - 235,242,679

b. Certain other prior year balarices have also been reclassified to conform to the current year presentation. The effect of these
reclassifications was nof material to the consolidated finaricial statements.
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Accounting Standards issued but not yet effective

IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments

Implementation Strategy

in July 2014, the 1ASB issued the final version of 'IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments’, which wilt replace 1AS 39 ~ Financial
fnstruments: Recognition and Measurement'. This new standard includes requirements for classification and measurement of
financial assefs and labilifies, impairment of financial assets and hedge accounting. The mandatery application date for IFRS 9
is from 1 January 2018. The Group considers it to be a significant project and has therefore set up an internal high-level
multidisciplinary project implementation committee comprising of senior members from Financial Control, Risk Management and
other business groups to oversee and direct the implementation of IFRS 9 across the Group. At the banking secter level, SAMA
has provided the necessary implementation guidance fo all the Saudi banks. The Group is now in the final phase of
implemeniation, whereby a parallel run exercise is currently under process together with various levels of validation.

The significant areas impacted by application of IFRS 9 are as follows:

Classification and Measurement

Under IFRS 9, the classification and measurement of financial assels depends on how these are managed by the Group as per
its approved business model and their contractual cash flow characteristics. These factors determine whether the financial
assets are measured at Amortized Cost (AC), Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOC!) or Fair Value through
income Statement (FVIS). The accounting for financial liabilities will largely be the same and no mgjor changes are expected by
the Bank.

The combined effect of the application of the business model and the contractual cash flow characteristics tests may result in
some reclassification of financial assets measured at amortized cost or fair value compared with the existing standard IAS 39.
However, based on an assessment of financial assets performed to date and expectations around changes to the composition
of statement of consolidated financial position, the Bank expects that the overall impact of any change will not be significant.

impairment of Financial Assets

With the implementation of IFRS 9, the impairment allowances will be recognized based on a forward looking Expected Credit
Loss {ECL) model applied to those financlal assets that are not measured via FVIS. This mainly includes joans and advances,
investments, due from banks and other financial institutions that are measured at AC or FVOCI, financial gquarantees and credit
commitments. No impairment loss will be recognized on equity investments. The key inputs of measurement in an ECL model
are the Probabilities of Default (PD}, Loss Given Default {LGD} and the Exposure at Default. These parameters are derived from
internally developed statistical models, other historical data and are periodically adjusted for forward looking information.

The Group plans to categonze its financial assets into the following three stages in accordance with the IFRS 8 methodelogy:

Stage 1 - Performing assets: Financial assets that have not significantly deteriorated in credit quality since origination. The
impairment allowance will be recorded based on a statistical model using both a twelve-month PD and an LGD percentage.

Stage 2 - Underperforming or Watch-list assets: Financial assets that have significantly deteriorated in credit quality since
origination, The impairment allowance will be recorded based on a statistical model derived using both a life time PD which
takes into consideraticn the fufure outlook and an LGD percentage.

Stage 3 ~ Impaired assets: For financial assets that are considered to be impaired, the Group will recognize the impairment
allowance based on a methodology using a life ime PD and the LGD is assessed based on a qualitative and quantitative
evaluaticn of the recovery prospects for these assets.

The Bank will adopt a forward-locking approach in its assessment of ECLs. The forward-looking elements will include economic
forecasts covering key macroeconomic factors {e.g. unemployment, GDP growth, inflation, special commission rates and other
market-related variables) obtained through internal and external sources. The forward looking PD used to determine the
impairment allowance will be computed based on future scenarios and their respective itkelihood of cccurrence.

Using the impairment approaches under IFRS 9 will result in an increase in the total level of impairment allowances over the
present JAS 39 determined level. This is due o major changes in the underiying methodology which include the applicaticn of a
lifetime ECL to exposures that are farger than the ones for which there is objective evidence of impairment in accordance with
1AS 39,

Hedge Accounting

The general hedge accounting requirements under IFRS 9 aim to simplify hedge accounting by creating a stronger fink with risk
management strategy of the Group and permitling hedge accounting to be applied to a greater variely of hedging instruments
and risks. However, at this point they do not explicitly address macro hedge accounting strategies, which are particulary
important for banks. As a result, IFRS 9 permilts an accounting policy choice fo remain with the current IAS 39 hedge
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accounting. Based on the analysis performed to date, the Group has exercised the accounting policy choice to continue with IAS
39 hedge accounting and therefore is not currently planning to change its hedge accounting.

Expected mpact

According to the transitional provisions of IFRS 9, the Group is permitted to recognize any difference between previous carrying
amounts of the financial assets under IAS 39 and the carrying amounts at the beginning of the application date through its
opening balance of retained earnings. The combined impact of this initial adjustment is estimated to be a reduction of
approximately 5% to the opening balance of the Group’s equity. The Group's capital ratios will also be impacted by such an
adjustment to the equity, but this impact is not expected to be greater than 0.65% of the current levels, notwithstanding the five
year transitionary arrangements aliowed by SAMA. Furthermore, with the implementation of IFRS 9, the Group also expects
greater volatility in its annual impairment charges as compared to the existing methodology which is currenfly governed by IAS
39 and the prevailing SAMA guidelines. This may impact the Group's future profitability as well as its regulatory capital levels.

It should however be noted that the above assessment is a point in time estimate and is not a forecast. The actual effect of the
implementation of IFRS 9 may vary from this estimate as the Group continues to refine and recafibrate its models,
methodologies and processes with continuing related regulatory guidance and developments.

The new standard also introduces extensive disclosure requirements and changes in presentation. These are expected fo
change the nature and extent of the Group’s disclosures about its financial instruments particularly in the year of adoption of the
new standard.

Governance and Controls

The governance structure and controls is currently under implementation in line with the IFRS 9 guidance document which calls
for the establishment of an approved governance framework with detailed policies and controls, including roles and
responsibilities of the various stakeholders.

The other Accounting standards, amendments and revisions which have been published and are mandatory for compliance for the
Group's accounting year beginning 1 January 2018 are listed below. The Group has opted not to early adopt these pronouncements
and they do not have a significant impact on the consolidated financial statements.

IFRS 15: Revenue from Contracts with Customers - New revenue standard is applicable to all entities and will supersede all
current revenue recognition requirements under IFRS. Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018.

Amendments to IFRS 2: Share-based Payment - The amendments cover measurement of cash-settled share-based payments,
classification of share-based payments seftled net of tax withholdings, and accounting for a modification of a share-based
payment from cash-settied to equity-seftled. Effective for the annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018.

IFRS 16: Leases - The new standard eliminates the current dual accounting model for lessees under 1AS 17, which
distinguishes between on-balance sheet finance leases and off-balance sheet operating leases. Instead, IFRS 16 proposes on-
balance sheet accounting model. Effective for the annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019.

Amendments to IAS 40: Investment Property - The amendments clarify that to transfer to, or from, investment properties there
must be a change in use. If a property has changed use, there should be an assessment of whether the properly meets the
definition and this change must be supporied by evidence.

Amendments to IAS 28: Investments in associates and joint ventures - The amendments clarify that companies account for
long-term interests in an associate or joint venture fo which the equity method is not applied using IFRS 9.

Amendments to IFRIC 22: Foreign currency fransactions and advance consideration - The interpretation provides guidance for
when a single payment/receipt is made as well as for situations where multiple payments/receipts are made.

Annual improvements 2014 - 2016 cycle - These amendments impact two standards:

e IFRS 1: First-time adoption of IFRS - regarding the deletion of shorl-term exemptions for first-ime adopters regarding [FRS
7. IFRS 19 and IFRS 10 effective from January 1, 2018.

« IAS 28: Investments in associates and joint ventures - regarding measuring an associate or joint venture at fair value
effective January 1, 2018,

Board of Directors' approval

The consolidated financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors’ on February 21, 2018 (5 Jumada 1i 1439H).
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